
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

      BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

MMaarrcchh  44,,  22002244  



March 1, 2024  4:42:16 PM 

 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, MARCH 4, 2024 

COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM, 116 ADAMS STREET 
PLYMOUTH, NC  27962 

 
 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Keyes 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
   Approval of Meeting Agenda 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Regular Session Minutes: February 5, 2024 & January 22, 2024 Budget Work Session 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Account 
c) RESO 2024-008 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 521 Monroe St., Plymouth 
d) RESO 2024-009 Severe Weather Preparedness Week 2024 
e) RESO 2024-010 Establishing Waterworks Capital Fund for WCPF 
f) Amendment to Capital Project Ordinance for Pea Ridge Water Transmission Main Project 
g) SCADA Contract 
h) PMZ – Obstruction Removal Scope and Fee 
i) PMZ – Runway Lighting 

 
Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3–5-minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 3 6:20 PM  Employee of the Quarter, Chair Keyes 
 
Item 4 6:30 PM Public Hearing:  Strategic Plan, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
 
Item 5 6:40 PM Albemarle Commission Update:  Ms. Sharon Smith, Special Projects Administrator 
 
Item 6 6:55 PM ¼ Sales Tax Referendum Update, Ms. Asia Melton, Management Fellow  
 
Item 7 7:05 PM County Broadband Update:  Commissioner Tracey A. Johnson 
 
Item 8 7:20 PM   EMTOC Building, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA  
 
Item 9 7:30 PM EM Grant, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
 
Item 10 7:40 PM  Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
   ABC Board, Planning Board 
   
Item 11 7:50 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers: Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance 

Officer 
 
Item 12 8:00 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners:  CM/CA, Finance Officer, or Clerk 

a)  BreezyBanks information from Planning Board 

Item 13 8:05 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-client 
privilege and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 

Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  March 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Regular Session Minutes:  February 5, 2024 & January 22, 2024 Budget Workshop 
Minutes 
See attached at the very end of this package. 
 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Account 
See attached 
 

c) RESO 2024-008 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 521 Monroe St., Plymouth 
See attached. 
 

d) RESO 2024-009 Severe Weather Preparedness Week 2024 
See attached. 
 

e) RESO 2024-010 Establishing Waterworks Capital Fund for WCPF 
See attached. 
 

f) Amendment to Capital Project Ordinance for Pea Ridge Water Transmission Main 
Project 
See attached. 
 

g) SCADA Contract 
Staff is asking for approval of the Scada Improvement Contract with Custom 
Controls Unlimited, LLC 
 
Follow the link below to the 244pg contract for the proposed SCADA 

improvements contract.   

240122_Washington Co. SCADA_FRC_Partial Executed.pdf 
 

https://thewootencompany-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/p/wlarsen/EXsTbzn_xUtMgxbGqfNBGYQBcOGZHn5TQpMbknnc4FShyQ


 
This is to facilitate the long overdue upgrade of our automated water 
management system which we have been working toward for some time now.  
The Board accepted the bid from Custom Controls Unlimited LLC last fall and 
we just received the contract in early February.  Staff recommends the Board 
approve the proposed contract along with any final modifications recommended 
by staff that would result in more favorable terms for the County and authorize 
staff to execute the contract once finalized. 
 

h) PMZ – Obstruction Removal Scope and Fee 
Please see attached. 
 

The Board will be asked to approve the proposed Task Order 2024-1 which is for 
the initial design services associated with this project only (not the entire scope of 
construction yet which is intended to be funded with state grant funding).  
Subsequent approval will be required to authorize that larger scope of work. 
 
This project is number 2 in priority for the Aviation Advisory Committee, and 
will eventually clear and grubbing and replant as mowable grass approximately 
15+ acres at each end of the main runway of the Plymouth Municipal Airport to 
keep the approach zones permanently clear of potential obstructions/obstacles 
most commonly associated with trees which grow into the areas which the FAA 
requires to be maintained free of such obstacles.  State funding will pay for this 
process once, only if it is done to the extent required by NC DOT which involves 
a number of additional steps beyond simple clearing and thus results in a higher 
project cost than might otherwise result if the County as the Airport sponsor were 
to fund this from local funding without going through all the additional required 
procedures and extensive scope of work. 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve this Task Order and authorize staff to 
execute and return it to AVCON. 

 
i)  PMZ  - Runway Lighting 

  Please see attached. 
 
We are asking the Board to approve the Contract Agreement with Southeast Site 
Services, LLC for the Airfield Electrical Rehabilitation project. Funding has been 
approved as stated in the attached Notification of Award  (also included in the 
package). 

 
This is considered a safety project, and the Agreement includes the removal of 
existing electrical, replacement of runway edge and runway threshold/end 
lighting, PAPI installation, REIL installation, beacon replacement, vault 
modification, electrical improvements, and sodding. 

 
Staff recommends that the Board approve this Contract Agreement and authorize 
staff to execute and return it to AVCON. 

 















Washington County Resolution 2024-009  Page 1 of 2 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823  
   

PROCLAMATION 2024-009 
 

SEVERE WEATHER PREPAREDNESS WEEK 2024 
BY THE COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON COUNTY  

 
 

WHEREAS, North Carolina is traditionally an active area for tornados and severe 
thunderstorms; and  
 

WHEREAS, in 2023 North Carolina experienced 24 tornado touchdowns and the 
National Weather Service (NWS) in North Carolina issued 51 tornado warnings; and  

WHEREAS, last year the National Weather Service in North Carolina issued 751 severe 
thunderstorm warnings and recorded 127 large hail events and 844 damaging thunderstorm 
wind events; and 

WHEREAS, the average warning lead time for tornadoes was 6-11 minutes and 57 
minutes for flash floods; and  

WHEREAS, severe thunderstorms produce hail at least an inch in diameter, 58 mph + 
winds or can produce a tornado; and  

WHEREAS, all thunderstorms produce lightning and strikes are a significant threat in 
North Carolina. Remember, if you hear thunder roar, go indoors!  

WHEREAS, Washington County residents should listen to local radio, television, a weather 
channel or a National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) weather radio for 
information on severe weather; and 

WHEREAS, residents should make a family emergency plan with details on how to get to 
a safe location, contact each other and get back together. Include in the plan the safest 
locations on their regularly traveled routes; and  

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C KEYES, CHAIR 
CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
JOHN C. SPRUILL 
JULIUS WALKER, JR.  

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2024-009  Page 2 of 2 
 

WHEREAS, residents should have an emergency supply kit in their homes and vehicles 
that include a first aid kit, battery-powered radio, flashlight and non-perishable foods, bottled 
water, sturdy shoes, and gloves; and  

WHEREAS, Washington County residents, businesses and schools are urged to 
participate in the statewide tornado drill on Wednesday, March 6th at 9:30 a.m.; and 

 
WHEREAS, Washington County Emergency Management works to inform and educate 

residents about staying safe when severe weather strikes and ReadyNC.gov is available to 
provide current weather and traffic conditions; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Washington County Board of Commissioners, do hereby support 

the statewide “SEVERE WEATHER PREPAREDNESS WEEK” MARCH 3 – 9, 2024 in 
Washington County, and call upon our residents to observe the week with appropriate activities 
that promote awareness of severe weather and how to stay safe.  
 

ADOPTED this 4th day of March 2024. 
       __________________________________________ 

                                 Ann C. Keyes, Chair 
               Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 



Washington County Resolution 2024-010  Page 1 of 2 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823  
   

 
RESOLUTION 2024-010 

 
TO ESTABLISH A SEPARATE WATERWORKS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

 
 

WHEREAS, Washington County’s waterworks system is currently pursuing several large multi- 
year capital projects including without limitation the AIA/Rate Study Project (VUR-AIA-D-ARP-0008), 
the Roper Interconnection Repairs Project (VUR-D-ARP-0103), and the Pea Ridge Water Transmission 
Main Project (VUR-D-ARP-0104); and 

 
WHEREAS, Washington County previously included the revenues and expenditures associated 

with these capital projects in its annual budget ordinance as part of the same fund established and used 
for all other annual water system revenues and expenditures for the fiscal years ending June 30th, 2023 
and/or June 30th, 2024 respectively; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Manager and County Finance Officer in recent consultation with the 

County auditors have determined that pursuant to NCGS 159-26(b)(6), a separate capital project fund 
should now be created to more efficiently and effectively account for the revenues and expenditures 
associated with these and other potential capital projects of the Washington County Waterworks System 
which may be budgeted through capital project ordinances adopted in accordance with NCGS 159-13.2 
from time to time.  

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Board hereby directs the Finance Officer to establish a new Waterworks Capital Projects 
Fund (the “WCPF”) for the purpose of accounting for and reporting on any, and all capital 
projects of the Washington County Waterworks System which are budgeted through 

COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR.  

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Washington County Resolution 2024-010  Page 2 of 2 
 

specifically adopted capital project ordinances that direct the Finance Officer to maintain the 
accounting for such project(s) within the newly established WCPF. 
 

2. The Finance Officer will maintain within the WCPF sufficient detailed accounting records to 
satisfy the requirements of any applicable funding agency; funding, grant or loan agreements; 
and any other state or federal regulations applicable to such funding. 

 

 

 

ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________________ 2024. 
 

 

 

       __________________________________________ 
                                 Ann C. Keyes, Chair 

               Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 



Washington County Capital Project Ord. Amend. – Pea Ridge Water Transmission Main Page 1 of 2 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823  
   

 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE - AMENDMENT 

 
FOR PEA RIDGE WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN PROJECT 

 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED, by the Board of Commissioners of Washington County, North Carolina that, 

pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital 
project ordinance, originally adopted February 5th, 2024, is hereby amended, and adopted as follows: 

 
Section 1: The Project authorized is the construction of the Pea Ridge Water Transmission Main 

to be financed by a Viable Utility Reserve (VUR) grant from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). 
 
Section 2:   The officers of this unit are hereby directed to proceed with the capital project within 

the terms of the board resolution, grant documents and the budget contained herein. 
 
Section 3: The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

  Engineering       $   554,000 
  Permit Fees       $     10,000 

Easement Acquisition      $     30,000 
Legal         $     10,000 

  Construction                    $4,868,000 
                     $5,472,000 

 
Section 4:  The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete this project: 

  
ARP State Fiscal Recovery Fund    $5,472,000 

 
Section 5:  The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Waterworks Capital 

Projects Fund (Fund 36) created by Board Resolution 2024-010 adopted March 4th, 2024 sufficient 
specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the grantor agency, the grant 
agreements, and federal regulations.  
 

COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR.  

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Washington County Capital Project Ord. Amend. – Pea Ridge Water Transmission Main Page 2 of 2 
 

Section 6: Funds may be advanced from the General Fund for the purpose of making payments as 
due. Reimbursement requests should be made to the grantor agency in an orderly and timely manner. 
 

Section 7: The Finance Officer is directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the financial status of 
each project element in section 3 and on the total grant revenues received or claimed. 
 

Section 8: The Budget Officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and future costs and 
revenues on this capital project in every budget submission made to this board. 
 

Section 9: Copies of this Capital Project Ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk to the Board of 
Commissioners, and to the Budget Officer and the Finance officer for direction in carrying out this project. 
human rights for all citizens. 
 

Section 10: Any previously incurred expenses associated with this project which were properly 
budgeted within the County’s previous or current annual Budget Ordinances, and which are included 
within the total allocated expenses shown above, shall be deemed to the fullest extent permitted by law to 
be ratified and reauthorized pursuant to this Capital Project Ordinance. 
 

ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________________ 2024. 
 

 

       __________________________________________ 
                                 Ann C. Keyes, Chair 

               Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 



Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ) 
Obstruction Removal Project 

January 2024 

 Page 1 of 7                                         

TASK ORDER 2024-1 

 

DESIGN, PERMITTING AND BIDDING FOR  

OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PROJECT 

(Grant #: TBD)  
(NPE Funding) 

AT  

PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT (PMZ) 

WASHINGTON COUNTY, NC 

  

Describing a specific agreement between the County of Washington (CLIENT) and AVCON, INC. 
(CONSULTANT), in accordance with the terms of the Master Agreement for Continuing Services dated 
September 5, 2019, and expiring September 4th, 2024. 
 
IDENTIFICATION OF PROJECT: 
 
The Obstruction Removal Project at the Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ) located in Plymouth North 
Carolina consists of clearing approximately 33 acres of trees from the approach areas of Runway 3 and 21.  
The project includes design, permitting, bidding, CATEX, and grant assistance services.  This Project may 
include, but is not limited to, such construction elements as clearing, clearing and grubbing, erosion and 
sediment control, construction safety and phasing plans, turf restoration, and other similar construction 
items.  It is not anticipated that any permanent physical features will be constructed as a part of this 
Project. 
 
Project Description: The intent of this project is to clear and grub the entire project limits, grade the 
project area to provide positive drainage, and establish ground cover for ease of future maintenance.  
 
Project limits are shown on the attached exhibits. 
 
SPECIFIC SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
 
AVCON will provide design, permitting, bidding, CATEX, and grant assistance services for the Obstruction 
Removal Project as described above.  Meetings and coordination with the CLIENT and various funding and 
review agencies is an important part of the design phase and will be scheduled during this phase. 
 
The Scope of Services is outlined below and more fully described following the outline.   
 
Basic Services 
 

1. Pre-Design – Pre-Design will include project scoping and review of environmental documentation. 
2. Design – Develop and prepare 90% and 100% (As-Bid) Plans and Specifications. 
3. Bidding Phase 

 
Special Services 
 

1. Pre-Design Categorical Exclusion (CATEX) will be completed via subconsultant and include review of 
the existing parcel for any environmental issues that may be present.   

2. Grant Administration and Support Services 



Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ) 
Obstruction Removal Project 

January 2024 

 Page 2 of 7                                         

3. Site Survey 
 

The CONSULTANT will obtain and provide via subconsultant the necessary CATEX.  The CONSULTANT will 
utilize, to the greatest extent possible, any materials, digital files, project documents or specifications 
provided by the CLIENT.   
 
After acceptance by the CLIENT of this Task Order (TO #2023-1), and indication of any specific 
modifications or changes in the scope, extent, character, or design requirements of the project desired by 
the CLIENT, and upon written authorization from the CLIENT, CONSULTANT shall proceed with the 
following project tasks: 
 
Basic Services 
 
Task 1: Pre-Design Phase  
 
CONSULTANT, under Pre-Design Phase, shall: 

 
1. Project scope and fee development. 

 
2. General project management and coordination. 

 
3. Arrange and conduct a “project kickoff meeting” with the CLIENT to discuss project scoping and 

goals.  It is anticipated that one meeting will be held at the AIRPORT. Minutes and attendance will 
be completed and distributed to all participants. 

 
4. Site survey subcontractor coordination and review of data. 

 
5. Site Survey: A site survey will be prepared for this project. This survey consists of creating a 3D 

digital surface via UAS-based LiDAR for the purpose of a topographic survey. This survey will be tied 
to NC grid coordinates with the use of GNSS survey ground control. 
 

6. Categorical Exclusion subcontractor coordination. 
 

7. Categorical Exclusion Documentation (CatEx): A categorical exclusion document (CatEx) will be 
prepared for this project.  Information provided by CLIENT will serve as the basis of the CatEx.  If 
more than a CatEx is required for this project, a contract amendment for the additional services will 
be prepared.  AVCON to aid CatEx document with preparing exhibits, coordination of the stream 
setback requirements with the Washington County, and for QC of the final documents. 

 
Task 2: 90% Design Phase Services 

 
CONSULTANT, under Design Phase, shall: 

 
1. Conduct site visit and field review.   

 
2. Prepare 90% design and construction drawings for the Project, indicating the scope, extent, and 

character of the work to be constructed under this project.  Technical specifications and Project 
Manual will be prepared in general conformance with FAA requirements and standards, and as 
necessary, NCDOT or NCDEQ format.  



Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ) 
Obstruction Removal Project 

January 2024 

 Page 3 of 7                                         

2. Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data for CLIENT’s use in filing applications 
for permits from or approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction to review or approve 
the final design of the Project and assist CLIENT in consultations with appropriate authorities. 

 
3. Prepare opinion of probable construction cost at the 90% design level. 
 
4. Perform or provide, in general, the following 90% Design Phase tasks: 
 
 Associated drawings and specifications necessary to define limits of the Project including: 

 geometrics (horizontal control and vertical/profile information) 

 grading and drainage as required to improve site conditions 

 erosion and sediment control 

 details, notes and information regarding safety plans, construction phasing and 
sequencing to minimize airport operational impacts, and other similar documentation.  

 
5. Prepare Construction Safety and Phasing Plans and submit to the CLIENT, NCDOT and FAA for 

review.   
 

6. Prepare 7460 forms for proposed construction activities and submit to the CLIENT, NCDOT and FAA 
for review.    

 
8. Conduct one (1) project 90% design meetings with the CLIENT, NCDOA, and tenants (including 

environmental agencies or groups as required).  Working and coordinating with the CLIENT, 
attempt to schedule project meetings such that involved agencies and groups could attend. 
Minutes and attendance will be completed and distributed to all participants. 

 
7. Coordinate with NCDOA for minority goals to be included in the contract provisions.  

 
8. Prepare and submit construction plans, specifications, project manual, engineer’s report, and cost 

estimates.   
 
9. CONSULTANT’s services under the 90% Design Phase will be considered complete on the date 

when the 90% Design Documents for the Project have been delivered to CLIENT. 
 
10. A list of anticipated project drawings is as follows: 

 Cover Sheet 

 Index of Drawings, Legend, Summary of Quantities, General Notes 

 Legend and Abbreviations, General Notes 

 Survey Control Plan 

 Access Control Plan/Staging Area/Haul Routes/Notes 

 Construction Safety and Security Notes 

 Construction Safety Plan 

 Construction Phasing Plans and Notes 

 Clearing, Grubbing and Demolition Plans and Details 

 Grading Plans, Notes, and Details 

 Erosion and Sediment Control Plans  

 Erosion and Sediment Control Notes and Details 
 



Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ) 
Obstruction Removal Project 

January 2024 

 Page 4 of 7                                         

11. Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data for CLIENT’s use in filing applications 
for permits from or approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction to review or approve 
the final design of the Project and assist CLIENT in consultations with appropriate authorities. 

 
 The 90% Design Phase will be considered complete upon the submittal of the 90% Design 

documents to the CLIENT. 
 
Task 3: 100% Design Phase Services 

 
CONSULTANT, under Design Phase, shall: 

 
1. Conduct site visit and field review.  It is anticipated that the field review will be conducted 

concurrent with 90% Design Review Meeting. 
 
2. Prepare final design and construction drawings for the Project, indicating the scope, extent, and 

character of the work to be constructed under this project.  Technical specifications and Project 
Manual will be prepared in general conformance with FAA requirements and standards, and as 
necessary, NCDOT or NCDEQ format.  

 
3. Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data for CLIENT’s use in filing applications 

for permits from or approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction to review or approve 
the final design of the Project and assist CLIENT in consultations with appropriate authorities. 

 
4. Prepare opinion of probable construction cost at the 100%/final design levels. 
 
5. Perform or provide, in general, the following Design Phase tasks: 
 
 Associated drawings and specifications necessary to define limits of the Project including: 

 geometrics (horizontal control and vertical/profile information) 

 grading and drainage as required to improve site conditions 

 erosion and sediment control details, notes and information regarding safety plans 

  construction phasing and sequencing to minimize airport operational impacts, and other 
similar documentation.  

 
6. Address comments received for review agencies into a final Construction Safety and Phasing Plan to 

be included in the Project Manual.     
 
7. Conduct one (1) project design meetings with the CLIENT, NCDOA, and tenants (including 

environmental agencies or groups as required).  Working and coordinating with the CLIENT, 
attempt to schedule project meetings such that involved agencies and groups could attend. 
Minutes and attendance will be completed and distributed to all participants. 

 
8. Coordinate with NCDOA for minority goals to be included in the contract provisions prior to the 

100% submittal for inclusion in the 100% project submittal. 
 
9. Prepare and submit construction plans, specifications, project manual, engineer’s report, and cost 

estimates at 100% final level of completion (One set to CLIENT, and pdf sets to CLIENT and 
NCDOA).   

 



Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ) 
Obstruction Removal Project 

January 2024 

 Page 5 of 7                                         

10. Prepare and furnish Bidding Documents for review and approval by CLIENT and assist CLIENT in 
the preparation of other related documents. 

 
11. Submit two (2) final copies of the Bidding Documents and opinion of probable construction cost to 

CLIENT and a pdf copy to the CLIENT and NCDOA. 
 
12. CONSULTANT’s services under the 100% Design Phase will be considered complete on the date 

when the final Bid Documents for the Project have been delivered to CLIENT. 
 
13. A list of anticipated project drawings is as follows: 

 Cover Sheet  

 Index of Drawings, Legend, Summary of Quantities, General Notes 

 Legend and Abbreviations, General Notes 

 Survey Control Plan 

 Access Control Plan/Staging Area/Haul Routes/Notes 

 Construction Safety and Security Notes 

 Construction Safety Plan 

 Construction Phasing Plans and Notes 

 Clearing, Grubbing and Demolition Plans and Details 

 Grading Plans, Notes, and Details 

 Erosion and Sediment Control Plans  

 Erosion and Sediment Control Notes and Details 
 

14. Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data for CLIENT’s use in filing applications 
for permits from or approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction to review or approve 
the final design of the Project and assist CLIENT in consultations with appropriate authorities. 

 
The 100% Design Phase will be considered complete upon the submittal of the bid documents to the 
CLIENT. 
 
Task 4: Bidding Phase Services: 

 
The CONSULTANT shall provide Bid Phase services as set forth below: 
 

1. CONSULTANT will contact prequalified contractors per the NCDOT prequalification list. 
 

2. CONSULTANT will assist OWNER with preparation of advertisement to bid. 
 

3. The CONSULTANT shall conduct one (1) Pre-Bid meeting for this project.  Contractors will be 
allowed to visit the site after the Pre-Bid meeting and submit questions in writing.  CONSULTANT 
shall issue addenda as appropriate to answer questions presented to the CONSULTANT, clarify, 
correct, or revise the Bidding Documents and issuance of pre-bid notes and attendance. 

 
4. Preparation of Addenda – CONSULTANT shall assist the OWNER with preparation of all required 

technical related addenda to revise plans and specifications and/or respond to questions in order 
to provide necessary clarification or to correct discrepancies.  The CONSULTANT shall issue all 
addenda to the prospective Bidders. 

 
5. Bid Opening - Attend and conduct (1) Bid Opening. 



Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ) 
Obstruction Removal Project 

January 2024 

 Page 6 of 7                                         

6. Bid Tabulation and Recommendation of Award – CONSULTANT shall develop a tabulation of all 
bids received and conduct an evaluation, which will check for correctness of the bid schedule and 
identify the lowest responsive bidder.  Upon completion of the evaluation process, CONSULTANT 
shall make a written recommendation of award to the OWNER in accordance with General Statute 
143-129. 

 
The Bidding Phase services shall be considered complete upon CONSULTANT’s issuance of the conformed 
documents to the OWNER to award of a construction contract. 
 
Task 5: Grant Administration Support 
 
The CONSULTANT will assist and support the CLIENT in the preparation of required and mandated grant 
related applications and forms (in accordance with current DoA checklists), documents and 
documentation, such as developing, updating and maintain project schedules and cash flow, progress 
reports, requests for interim payments and other related documents, submissions, and grant processes 
required in accordance with current OWNER rules and procedures for compliance with grant 
requirements. 
  
SCHEDULE:   A detailed design and bidding schedule will be developed based on the execution of this Task 
Order and the project kick off.  Consideration will be given to funding availability and scheduling once 
confirmed.   
 
DELIVERABLES TO INCLUDE: 
(All deliverables for design and bidding will meet the requirements of AV-101 Checklist dated October 
2020.) 
 
1. Prepare evaluation report based on finding from initial site visit.  Evaluation report to be submitted to 

all parties via email and PDF. 
 

2. Prepare and submit construction plans, specifications, and cost estimates at 90%, and 100% levels of 
completion for each submission (1 set of plans for each submission to the CLIENT (hard copy) and 
NCDOA (digital). 

 
3. Prepare and submit to CLIENT and NCDOA for review and comments, the Construction Safety and 

Phasing Plan (CSPP) and 7460 Form.  CONSULTANT to provide NCDOA the NRA number after 
submitting so they can inform the ADO the case has been submitted and ready for review. A copy of a 
completed CSPP Checklist will be submitted for review, with NCDOA comments uploaded with the 
plans into OE/AAA for FAA review and comments. 

 
4. Submit 1 final hard copy of the Final Documents to the CLIENT and opinion of probable construction 

cost to CLIENT.  Submit a PDF of the Final Documents to NCDOA.   
 
ASSUMPTIONS 
 
1. Any permitting fees associated with the project will be paid separately by CLIENT.  
 
2. The engineer’s opinion of probable construction cost will be provided to the CLIENT as part of the 

Engineer’s Design Report accompanying each interim submittal. 
 



Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ) 
Obstruction Removal Project 

January 2024 

Page 7 of 7 

3. A CATEX will be the form of environmental documentation and approval for this project. It is
understood that the CATEX will be completed through AVCON by a third-party environmental firm.

4. Meetings will be as follows (CONSULTANT to provide meeting minutes and attendance):

A. Kick Office Meeting and Site Visit (1)
B. Project Design Review Meeting (3) (VIRTUAL)

5. Construction plans will be prepared assuming one prime construction contractor. The timing for
construction will be closely coordinated with the CLIENT and NCDOA and funding agencies.

METHOD OF COMPENSATION:  

For the Obstruction Removal Project at the Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ) consisting of the Scoping 
and Project Development, preliminary design, design, bidding, and grant administration for Obstruction 
Removal. as previously described a total project fee of $163,616.00 as shown and distributed below: 

Basic Services 

 TASK 1 – Pre-Design Phase Services – a Lump Sum fee of $14,070.00

 TASK 2 – 90% Design Phase Services – a Lump Sum fee of $68,910.00

 TASK 3 – 100% Design Phase Services – a Lump Sum fee of $30,755.00

 TASK 4 - Bid Phase Services – a Lump Sum fee of $13,242.00

 TASK 4 – Grant Administration – a Lump Sum fee of $9,293.00

Special Services 

 CATEX – a Lump Sum fee of $17,826.00

 Survey – a Lump Sum fee of $9,520.00

CONSULTANT shall be compensated based on the completion of work, submission of design and bid 
documents and the information presented above and in the fee spreadsheet workups.  Progress payments 
shall be made monthly.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement as of the day and year 
first above written. 

CLIENT:  CONSULTANT: 
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON AVCON ENGINEERS & PLANNERS, INC., d/b/a AVCON, INC. 

BY: ______________________________ BY: ______________________________ 

ITS: ______________________________ ITS: ______________________________

ATTEST: __________________________     ATTEST: __________________________  

Sr. Vice President

jkriss
Typewritten Text

jkriss
Typewritten Text

jkriss
Typewritten Text

jkriss
Typewritten Text

jkriss
Typewritten Text



AVCON Project No. 2023.0317.01 DATE: 1/29/2024

DESIGN AND BIDDING PHASE 
SERVICES

NCDOA (Prel. And Final Design)
Code Item Grant #_______________

A101 SPONSOR ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE
Legal Fees $0.00
Bid Advertisement $0.00
Postage & Reproduction $0.00
Independent Fee Estimate $0.00
Permitting $4,000.00
DBE $0.00

SUBTOTAL $4,000.00

A102 PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING, PLANNING, TESTING, AND PERMITTING
$14,070

Planning (ALP / Feasibility Studies) $0
Environmental Documentation $17,826
Topographic Survey $9,520
Subsurface Investigation $0

SUBTOTAL $41,416

A103 LAND ACQUISITION & EASEMENTS
SUBTOTAL $0

A104 ENGINEERING SERVICES
Final Design and Project Coordination $99,665
Bidding $13,242
Construction Adminstration
As-built surveying
Grant Administration $9,293

SUBTOTAL $122,200

A105 PROJECT INSPECTION, QUALITY ASSURANCE, TESTING
Resident Project Representative $0
Erosion Control Inspection $0
Quality Assurance Testing $0

SUBTOTAL $0

A106 CONSTRUCTION AND PROJECT IMPROVEMENT COST
Construction Cost $0

$0
SUBTOTAL $0

A107 EQUIPMENT
SUBTOTAL $0

A108 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
SUBTOTAL $0

A109 IN KIND MATCH
SUBTOTAL $0

GRAND TOTAL $167,616

FUNDING: $167,616
Federal Grant $150,854
State Grant $16,762
Local Match $0

Preliminary Design and Project Coodination

FOR
OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PROJECT

PROGRAM BUDGET
 

DESIGN AND BIDDING PHASE SERVICES

WASHINGTON COUNTY, NC



AVCON Project Number DATE: 1/15/2024

Item Description Amount Method NCDOA Code

Task 1 Pre-Design Phase Services A104
Direct Labor Costs and Expenses $14,070.00
Subs-CATEX (Withers) $17,826.00
Subs-Survey (Withers) $9,520.00

$41,416.00 LS

Task 2 90% Design Phase Services
90% Design Phase Services

Direct Labor Costs and Expenses $68,910.00
90% Design Phase Total $68,910.00 LS A104

Task 3 100% Design Phase Services
100% Design Phase Services

Direct Labor Costs and Expenses $30,755.00
$30,755.00 LS A104

Task 4 Bidding Phase Services
Direct Labor Costs and Expenses $13,242.00

$13,242.00 LS

Task 5 Grant Adminstration Services
Direct Labor Costs and Expenses $9,293.00

$9,293.00 LS

Total $163,616.00

2023.0317.01

Bid Phase Services Total

Pre-Design Phase Total

Grant Adminstration Services Total

A104

A104

100% Design Phase Total

PROFESSIONAL FEE SUMMARY

DESIGN AND BIDDING PHASE SERVICES

OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PROJECT

WASHINGTON COUNTY, NC

FOR



ENGINEERING FEE COMPUTATION FOR PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PROJECT

TASK 1:  PRE-DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

Task 1-Pre-Design Phase Services
Scope and Fee Development 4 4 8
General Project Management / Project Coordination 8 8 16
Project Kick Off Meetings (1), Agenda, Notes and Site Visit 1 2 8 8 2 20
Survey Review and Coordination 2 4 2 8
CATEX Subcontractor Coordination 4 2 6
Draft CATEX Review, Comments 4 2 6
CATEX Submittal, Approval 2 2 4

Total
Trips

1

Total Manhours By Category 0 14 32 18 4 0 0 68
Hourly Salary Rate $88.46 $84.13 $70.67 $43.75 $43.75 $40.00 $26.00

Payroll Burden $0.00 $1,177.88 $2,261.54 $787.50 $175.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total Payroll Burden $4,401.92
General Overhead 180.38% $7,940.19

Subtotal $12,342.11
Profit 11.00% $1,357.63

Facilities Cost of Capital 3.2136% $141.46
Total $13,841.20

Direct Expenses (see below) $227.80

 SubTotal - Pre-Design Phase (USE) $14,070.00

CATEX (Withers) $17,826.00
Survey (Withers) $9,520.00

 Total - Pre-Design Phase (USE) $41,416.00
DIRECT COSTS UNIT QUANTITY MILES UNIT COST TOTAL

TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Huntersville - PMZ (580 miles/trip avg.)) Trips 0 580 $0.670 $0.00
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Wilmington - PMZ (340 miles/trip avg.)) Trips 1 340 $0.670 $227.80

PER DIEM Each 0 $46.50 $0.00
LODGING Each 0 $95.00 $0.00
PRINTING/REPRODUCTIONS - SEE DETAILED REPRODUCTION EXPENSES BACKUP SHEET LS 0 $0.00 $0.00
POSTAGE/OVERNIGHT DELIVERIES LS 0 $0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL DIRECT COSTS $227.80

Sr. Project 
Manager

Engineer / 
Planner

Engineer / 
Planner

Designer/CAD 
Tech

Admin / 
Clerical

TOTAL 
HOURS

ITEMS OF WORK

N
o

. M
tg

s/
 

fr
eq

u
en

cy

H
rs

/m
tg

 o
r 

vi
si

t 
an

d
   

# 
st

af
f

T
ri

p
s

Principal 
Regional 
Manager



ENGINEERING FEE COMPUTATION FOR PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PROJECT

TASK 2:  90% DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

Task 2 - 90% Design Phase Services
Design Project Management / Project Coordination / Design Meeting 4 24 8 4 40
Geometric Control/Layout 2 2 8 12
Clearing and Grubbing Layout 4 8 16 28
Grading Design 8 16 40 64
Erosion & Sediment Control Layout & Design 8 24 40 72
Develop 90% Construction Plans 65 98 163
Specifications 2 4 4 8 18
Quantities and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 2 2 4 8
Engineer's Design Report 4 4 8 16
Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) Review of Plans & Specs 8 8
90% Project Design and Coordination Meeting and Site Visit 2 2 2 4 10

Prepare Erosion & Sediment Control Application and Submit to NCDEQ 8 8 16

Develop Construction Safety Phasing Plan and Checklist 4 4 2 10
Develop 7460 Form Exhibit 2 2

Total
Trips

0

Total Manhours By Category 0 14 56 82 207 98 10 467
Hourly Salary Rate $88.46 $84.13 $70.67 $43.75 $43.03 $40.00 $26.00

Payroll Burden $0.00 $1,177.88 $3,957.69 $3,587.50 $8,907.21 $3,920.00 $260.00
Total Payroll Burden $21,810.29
General Overhead 180.38% $39,341.40

Subtotal $61,151.68
Profit 11.00% $6,726.69

Facilities Cost of Capital 3.2136% $700.90
Total $68,579.26

Direct Expenses (see below) $329.96

 Total - 90% Design Phase (USE) $68,910.00

DIRECT COSTS UNIT QUANTITY MILES UNIT COST TOTAL
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Huntersville - PMZ (580 miles/trip avg.)) Trips 0 580 $0.670 $0.00
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Wilmington - PMZ (340 miles/trip avg.)) 0 340 $0.670 $0.00

PER DIEM Each 0 $46.50 $0.00
LODGING Each 0 $95.00 $0.00
PRINTING/REPRODUCTIONS - SEE DETAILED REPRODUCTION EXPENSES BACKUP SHEET LS 1 $329.96 $329.96
POSTAGE/OVERNIGHT DELIVERIES LS 0 $0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL DIRECT COSTS $329.96

Sr. Project 
Manager

Engineer / 
Planner

Engineer / 
Planner

Designer/CAD 
Tech

Admin / 
Clerical

TOTAL 
HOURS

ITEMS OF WORK

N
o

. M
tg

s/
 

fr
eq

u
en

cy

H
rs

/m
tg

 o
r 

vi
si

t 
an

d
   

# 
st

af
f

T
ri

p
s

Principal 
Regional 
Manager



ENGINEERING FEE COMPUTATION FOR PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PROJECT

TASK 3:  100% DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

Task 3 - 100% Design Phase Services
Incorporate 90% Design Comments 4 4 8 16
Finalize Geometric Control/Layout 2 2 4
Finalize Clearing and Grubbing Layout 2 2 8 12
Finalize Grading Design 4 8 16 28
Finalize Erosion & Sediment Control Layout & Design 4 8 20 32
Develop 100% Construction Plans 12 17 29
Specifications 2 2 2 8 14
Quantities and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 2 2 2 6
Engineer's Design Report 2 2 4 8
Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) Review of Plans & Specs 8 8
100% Project Design and Coordination Meeting 2 2 2 4 10
Issue for Bid Documents 4 8 8 4 4 28

Address Erosion & Sediment Control Application Comments, Finalize Permit 4 8 12

Total
Trips

0

Total Manhours By Category 0 10 22 44 90 29 12 207
Hourly Salary Rate $88.46 $84.13 $70.67 $43.75 $43.03 $40.00 $26.00

Payroll Burden $0.00 $841.35 $1,554.81 $1,925.00 $3,872.70 $1,160.00 $312.00
Total Payroll Burden $9,665.85
General Overhead 180.38% $17,435.27

Subtotal $27,101.12
Profit 11.00% $2,981.12

Facilities Cost of Capital 3.2136% $310.62
Total $30,392.87

Direct Expenses (see below) $361.51

 Total - 90% Design Phase (USE) $30,755.00

DIRECT COSTS UNIT QUANTITY MILES UNIT COST TOTAL
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Huntersville - PMZ (580 miles/trip avg.)) Trips 0 580 $0.670 $0.00
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Wilmington - PMZ (340 miles/trip avg.)) 0 340 $0.670 $0.00

PER DIEM Each 0 $46.50 $0.00
LODGING Each 0 $95.00 $0.00
PRINTING/REPRODUCTIONS - SEE DETAILED REPRODUCTION EXPENSES BACKUP SHEET LS 1 $361.51 $361.51
POSTAGE/OVERNIGHT DELIVERIES LS 0 $0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL DIRECT COSTS $361.51

Sr. Project 
Manager

Engineer / 
Planner

Engineer / 
Planner

Designer/CAD 
Tech

Admin / 
Clerical

TOTAL 
HOURS

ITEMS OF WORK

N
o

. M
tg

s/
 

fr
eq

u
en

cy

H
rs

/m
tg

 o
r 

vi
si

t 
an

d
   

# 
st

af
f

T
ri

p
s

Principal 
Regional 
Manager



ENGINEERING FEE COMPUTATION FOR PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PROJECT

TASK 4:  BIDDING PHASE SERVICES

Task 4 - Bidding Phase Services
Coordinate Bid Advertisement and Print/Distribute Bid Docs 2 2 4
Arrange/Attend/Conduct Pre-Bid Meeting 1 8 1 8 8 16
Respond to Questions from Bidders and Issue Addenda 2 4 4 2 12
Arrange/Attend/Conduct Bid Opening and Tabulate Bids 1 8 1 8 8
Tabulate Bids and CreateCertifed Bid Tab 2 2 4
Review Bid Packages for Compliance with Project Requirements 2 2 4
Recommend Award to Airport Staff and NCDOA 2 2
Prepare/Review Construction Contract Documents for Airport Staff 2 2 4
Issue Released for Construction Documents 2 8 8 4 22

Total Trips 2

Total Manhours By Category 0 0 26 24 16 0 10 76
Hourly Salary Rate $88.46 $84.13 $70.67 $43.75 $43.03 $40.00 $26.00

Payroll Burden $0.00 $0.00 $1,837.50 $1,050.00 $688.48 $0.00 $260.00
Total Payroll Burden $3,835.98
General Overhead 180.38% $6,919.34

Subtotal $10,755.32
Profit 11.00% $1,183.09

Facilities Cost of Capital 3.2136% $123.27
Total $12,061.68

Direct Expenses (see below) $1,179.60

 Total - Bidding $13,242.00

DIRECT COSTS UNIT QUANTITY MILES UNIT COST TOTAL
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Huntersville - PMZ (580 miles/trip avg.)) Trips 0 580 $0.670 $0.00
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Wilmington - PMZ (340 miles/trip avg.)) 2 340 $0.670 $455.60

PER DIEM Each 0 $46.50 $0.00
LODGING Each 0 $95.00 $0.00
PRINTING/REPRODUCTIONS - SEE DETAILED REPRODUCTION EXPENSES BACKUP SHEET LS 1 $724.00 $724.00
POSTAGE/OVERNIGHT DELIVERIES LS 0 $0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL DIRECT COSTS $1,179.60

Principal 
Regional 
Manager

Engineer / 
Planner

Sr. Project 
Manager

ITEMS OF WORK
TOTAL 
HOURS

Engineer / 
Planner

Designer/CAD 
Tech

Admin / 
Clerical

N
o

. M
tg

s
/ 

fr
e

q
u

e
n

c
y

H
rs

/m
tg

 o
r 

v
is

it
   

   
 

a
n

d
 #

 s
ta

ff

T
ri

p
s



ENGINEERING FEE COMPUTATION FOR PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PROJECT

TASK 5:  GRANT ADMINISTRATION

Task 5 - Grants Administration Services
Assist Client with Funding Agency Request for Aid, Requests for Reimbursements and Grant 
Administration/Compliance Including:

Grant Applications, Forms and Support Documents 4 8 12
Project Schedule and Cash Flow 2 1 3
QSR Progress Reports 2 2 4
Interim Reimbursements (5) 10 15 25
Grant Closeout 2 6 8
Other Related Documents, Submissions, and Grant Processes Required by NCDOA and County 4 4 8

Total Manhours By Category 0 24 0 0 0 0 36 60
Hourly Salary Rate $88.46 $84.13 $70.67 $43.75 $43.03 $40.00 $26.00

Payroll Burden $0.00 $2,019.23 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $936.00
Total Payroll Burden $2,955.23
General Overhead 180.38% $5,330.65

Subtotal $8,285.88
Profit 11.00% $911.45

Facilities Cost of Capital 3.2136% $94.97
Total $9,292.29

Direct Expenses (see below) $0.00

 Total - Grants Administration Services $9,293.00

DIRECT COSTS UNIT QUANTITY MILES UNIT COST TOTAL
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Huntersville - PMZ (580 miles/trip avg.)) Trips 0 580 $0.670 $0.00
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Wilmington - PMZ (340 miles/trip avg.)) 0 340 $0.670 $0.00

PER DIEM Each 0 $46.50 $0.00
LODGING Each 0 $95.00 $0.00
PRINTING/REPRODUCTIONS - SEE DETAILED REPRODUCTION EXPENSES BACKUP SHEET LS 0 $0.00 $0.00
POSTAGE/OVERNIGHT DELIVERIES LS 0 $0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL DIRECT COSTS $0.00

Principal 
Regional 
Manager

Sr. Project 
Manager

Sr. Project 
Manager

ITEMS OF WORK
TOTAL 
HOURS

Engineer / 
Planner

Designer/CAD 
Tech

Admin / 
Clerical

N
o

. 
M

tg
s/

 
fr

eq
u

en
cy

H
rs

/m
tg

 o
r 

vi
si

t 
  

  
  

an
d

 #
 s

ta
ff

T
ri

p
s



Reproductions

90% DESIGN
No. of 
Dwgs.    

(34 x 68)

No. of 
Dwgs.    

(6 sf ea)

No. of 
Pages   

8.5 x 11

No. of 
Pages   

8.5 x 11

No. of 
Pages   
11 x 17

No. of 
Pages   
11 x 17

Covers Bindings
Submittal 

Sets
Total Cost

B&W Color B&W Color B&W Color
$3.50 $8.62 $0.09 $0.83 $0.15 $1.66 $0.50 $0.50

Meeting Agendas and Notes $0.00
90% Review Plans (11"x17") 33 1 1 $5.45
Sedimentation and Erosion Control Permit Package (Submittal, 2 Sets Each) 33 100 33 1 $298.41
General Provisions and Tech Specs 200 1 1 1 $19.00
Engineer's Report 25 1 1 $2.75
CSPP 40 5 1 $4.35

Total $329.96

100% DESIGN
No. of 
Dwgs.    

(34 x 68)

No. of 
Dwgs.    

(6 sf ea)

No. of 
Pages   

8.5 x 11

No. of 
Pages   

8.5 x 11

No. of 
Pages   
11 x 17

No. of 
Pages   
11 x 17

Covers Bindings
Submittal 

Sets
Total Cost

B&W Color B&W Color B&W Color
$3.50 $8.62 $0.09 $0.83 $0.15 $1.66 $0.50 $0.50

Meeting Agendas and Notes $0.00
100% Review Plans (11"x17") 33 1 2 $10.90
Sedimentation and Erosion Control Permit Package (Resubmittal, 2 Sets Each) 33 100 33 1 $298.41
General Provisions and Tech Specs 200 1 1 2 $38.00
Engineer's Report 25 1 2 $5.50
CSPP 40 5 2 $8.70

Total $361.51

IFC
No. of 
Dwgs.    

(34 x 68)

No. of 
Dwgs.    

(6 sf ea)

No. of 
Pages   

8.5 x 11

No. of 
Pages   

8.5 x 11

No. of 
Pages   
11 x 17

No. of 
Pages   
11 x 17

Covers Bindings
Submittal 

Sets
Total Cost

B&W Color B&W Color B&W Color
$3.50 $8.62 $0.09 $0.83 $0.15 $1.66 $0.50 $0.50

Meeting Agendas and Notes $0.00
IFC Plans (22"x34") 33 1 5 $580.00
IFC Plans (11"x17") 33 1 5 $27.25
General Provisions and Tech Specs 200 1 1 5 $95.00
CSPP 40 5 5 $21.75

Total $724.00



List of Drawings/Plans Sheets

Total 90% 100%

Cover Sheet 1 1 1 1 1 2
Index of Drawings, Bid Schedules and/or Summary of Quantities 1 1 1 1 2 3
Legend and Abbreviations, General Notes 1 1 1 1 2 3
Survey Control Plan 1 1 1 2 4 6
Access Control Plan/Staging Area/Haul Routes/Notes 1 1 1 2 6 8
Safety and Security Notes 1 1 1 2 2 4
Safety Plans, Notes & Details 1 1 1 2 4 6
Construction Phasing Plan Overview 1 1 1 4 8 12
Clearing and Grubbing (6 Sheets) 6 6 6 18 24 42
Grading Plans (6 Sheets) 6 6 6 18 24 42
Grading Notes and Details 1 1 1 2 2 4
Erosion and Sediment Notes (2 Sheets) 2 2 2 2 4 6
Erosion and Sediment Control Plan (6 sheets) 6 6 6 18 24 42
Erosion and Sediment Control Details (4) 4 4 4 4 8 12

TOTAL  PLAN SHEETS 33 33 33 0 0 77 115 0 192

90% Design Submittal (rounded) - 85% effort 0 0 65 98 0 163
100% / Final Submittal (rounded) - 15% effort 0 0 12 17 0 29

Engineer / 
Planner

PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

DESIGN AND BIDDING PHASE SERVICES

Preparation of Construction Drawings

Submittals Project 
Manager

Designer/CAD 
Tech

Admin / 
Clerical

Senior 
Project 

Manager
Total MHs



RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA

RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA

ROFA ROFA ROFA

ROFA ROFA ROFA

R
O

FA

TOFA TOFA TOFA

TOFA TOFA

RPZ
RPZ

RPZ
RPZ

R
PZ

R
PZ

EXISTING RUNWAY 3 PART 77
34:1 APPROACH SURFACE
NON-PRECISION, TYPE C
500' x 3,500' x 10,000'

AIRPORT PROPERTY

APPROXIMATELY
17.6 ACRES OF
OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL

ENGINEERS & PLANNERS
AVCON, INC. RUNWAY 3 OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL - PROJECT LIMITS

PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

DATE:        08/17/2023AIRPORT: PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT PROJECT NO:  2023.0317.01www.avconinc.com

EXHIBIT
6230 CAROLINA BEACH ROAD

 WILMINGTON, NC 28412
OFFICE: (704) 954-9008

600'

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

300'0' 1,200'

NorthLEGEND
EXISTING 34:1 APPROACH SURFACE

PROPOSED OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL

OBSTACLE (TREE)

1



RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA

RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA

ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA

ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA

TOFA

EXISTING RUNWAY 21 PART 77
34:1 APPROACH SURFACE
NON-PRECISION, TYPE C
500' x 3,500' x 10,000'

AIRPORT PROPERTY

APPROXIMATELY
15.4 ACRES OF

OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL

ENGINEERS & PLANNERS
AVCON, INC. RUNWAY 21 OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL - PROJECT LIMITS

PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

DATE:        08/17/2023AIRPORT: PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT PROJECT NO:  2023.0317.01www.avconinc.com

EXHIBIT
6230 CAROLINA BEACH ROAD

 WILMINGTON, NC 28412
OFFICE: (704) 954-9008

1000'

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

500'0' 2,000'

NorthLEGEND
EXISTING 34:1 APPROACH SURFACE

PROPOSED OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL

OBSTACLE (TREE)

1



 

WithersRavenel   
Our People. Your Success. 

 

 115 MacKenan Drive | Cary, NC 27511 
t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. F-1479 

Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington 
 
 

 
October 3, 2023 
 
Marty Wynn, PE 
AVCON, INC 
630 Carolina Beach Road 
Wilmington, NC 28412 
Direct: 910.685.7113 

 
 
RE: PMZ LiDAR Survey, Plymouth, NC  
 
Dear: Mr. Wynn, 
 
WithersRavenel (WR) is pleased to present this Proposal for Professional Services to AVCON (CLIENT) for 
providing Unmanned Aerial Systems (UAS) professional surveying services.  
 
It is proposed that this project consist of creating a 3D digital surface via UAS-based LiDAR for the purpose 
of a topographic survey within the limits shown in Image 1. The project deliverables will be tied to NC grid 
coordinates with the use of GNSS survey ground control. 
 
We look forward to working with you on this project.  Please feel free to contact me should you require any 
clarification regarding this proposal. 
 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 

WithersRavenel 
 
 
 
 
 
Seth E. Swaim, PLS, GISP 
Remote Sensing Group Director 
 
 
 
Attachment 
 



WithersRavenel 
Our People. Your Success. 

 

 
PMZ LiDAR Survey WR No.  23-xxxx 
October 3, 2023 Page 1 

 
 

Plymouth Municipal Airport(PMZ) LiDAR Survey 
Plymouth, NC 

Proposal for Professional Services 
 

A.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

WithersRavenel is proposing to fly UAS based LiDAR of approximately 33 acres located at Plymouth 
Municipal Airport in Plymouth, NC. The LiDAR and/or Photogrammetry mapping will be collected and 
processed by WithersRavenel via Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS), and associated software 
technology. Project control will be established via survey grade GPS/GNSS and/or local control if 
provided by client. The project area for this scope will include a 17.6 ac. area off Runway 3 and 15.4 ac. 
area off Runway 21 as shown in Image 1 below. 

 
B.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Task 1- UAS LiDAR Topographic Mapping 
• Flight plan scheduling with the CLIENT and Airport staff as necessary 
• Coordination with Airport for NOTAM release 
• UAS Flight Standards 

o UAS flight crew may consist of a 2-man crew, one Pilot in Command (PIC) and one Visual 
Observer (VO) 

o Take-off and recovery of the aircraft will be completed on the CLIENTS property and the 
UAS will never leave subject property 

o All flights are limited to maximum of 400 feet above ground level (AGL) or below, and within 
visual line of sight (VLOS) of the UAS flight crew 

o Flight altitude could be as low as 50 feet AGL depending on site conditions 
o For safety and adherence to FAA regulations, each project area may be broken into multiple 

flight missions, with multiple launch and recovery sites 
• GPS/GNSS control, and utilize control established via NC licensed PLS, or CLIENT, as directed;  
• Datum: NAD 83 (2011) horizontal, NAVD88 vertical 
• Flight planning to include obstruction identification, proximity to landmarks and local airports; 
• Coordination with Air Traffic Control (ATC) as necessary; 
• All post-processing will be completed by WithersRavenel staff in-house 
• Anticipated point density: 50 ppsm 
• Accuracy expectation: Vertical accuracy will be to achieve a 1 foot contour interval and will meet 

+/- 0.30 feet for spot elevations and relative horizontal accuracy of +/- 0.20 feet. 
• Deliverable: XML and CAD/DWG ground surface with 1ft contours, Orthophoto (SID), NC PLS 

Survey Report *** 

Note:  acceptance of this proposal signifies the approval by Client to fly aircraft over the property 

***Areas of the project site heavily vegetated or otherwise obscure to where the ground is not 
visible by the LiDAR scanner will be classified and delivered as obscure with unverified 
accuracy.*** 

 

 

 

 



WithersRavenel 
Our People. Your Success. 

 

 
PMZ LiDAR Survey WR No.  23-xxxx 
October 3, 2023 Page 2 

 
 

Not Included Items 
• Planimetrics, streets, roads, driveways (outside of project area) 
• Additional existing conditions 
• Boundary survey 
• Building footprints 
• Tree lines 
• Below ground utilities 
• Utility Inverts 
• Hard copy mapping products 

 

 

 

Project Management 
 

Project management is a necessity on every project and ensures the coordination of the project runs 
smoothly as a whole and the deliverables meet the CLIENTS needs. This time allows for critical 
communication between the CLIENT and WR such that all tasks and unforeseen issues are resolved 
quickly and efficiently.  Delivery of the data to the CLIENT is included in this task as well. 

 

 

Image 1 

 

 

 

C.  ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

Any service not contained within the scope can be provided on an hourly basis.  Our hourly rates are as 
indicated on the attached fee and expense schedule. 

 

 



WithersRavenel 
Our People. Your Success. 

 

 
PMZ LiDAR Survey WR No.  23-xxxx 
October 3, 2023 Page 3 

 
 

 

D.  EXPENSES 

The following costs shall be paid by the CLIENT or be considered reimbursable and include but are not 
limited to the following: 

• None 

 

 

E.  COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES 

WithersRavenel proposes to provide the services outlined in Section B on a lump sum basis as defined 
below.  Reimbursable expenses shall be billed in accordance with Exhibit 2.  

 

Task Number Task Name Cost 

Task 1 PMZ LiDAR Survey $9,520 
 

F.  TIMELINE FOR SERVICES 

WithersRavenel will commence work within 10 days of written notice to proceed from the CLIENT.  
Deliverables will be provided within 10 days of completion of data collection. 

 
G.  ACCEPTANCE 

Receipt of an executed copy of this proposal will serve as the written proposal between WithersRavenel, 
Inc. and CLIENT for the basic services outlined in Section B of this document.  The terms outlined in the 
attached Exhibits – Standard Terms and Conditions (Exhibit 1), Fee and Expense Schedule (Exhibit 2) 
shall be considered a part of this proposal. 

 

WithersRavenel 

 
 
 
 
Seth E. Swaim, PLS, GISP 
Remote Sensing Group Director 
  
 
 
 
 
Exhibit I - Standard Terms and Conditions 
Exhibit 2 - Fee & Expense Schedule 

 

AVCON, INC 

Marty Wynn, PE 

By:  

Title:  

Date:  



 

WithersRavenel, Inc. Standard Terms & Conditions Page 1 
 Effective September 14, 2020 

E X H I B I T  I  
Standard Terms and Conditions 

WithersRavenel, Inc. 

 The proposal submitted by WithersRavenel, INC. (“CONSULTANT”) is subject to the following terms and conditions, which form an integral part 
of the Agreement.  By accepting the proposal, the services, or any part thereof, the CLIENT agrees and accepts the terms and conditions outlined below: 

1. Payment: 

a) The CLIENT will pay CONSULTANT for services and expenses 
in accordance with periodic invoices to CLIENT and a final 
invoice upon completion of the services. Each invoice is due 
and payable in full upon presentation to CLIENT. Invoices are 
past due after 30 days. Past due amounts are subject to 
interest at a rate of one and one-half percent per month (18% 
per annum) on the outstanding balance from the date of the 
invoice.  

b) If the CLIENT fails to make payment to the CONSULTANT 
within 45 days after the transmittal of an invoice, the 
CONSULTANT may, after giving 7 days written notice to the 
CLIENT, suspend services under this Agreement until all 
amounts due hereunder are paid in full. If an invoice remains 
unpaid after 90 days from invoice date, the CONSULTANT 
may terminate the Agreement. If Consultant initiates legal 
proceedings to collect the fees owed, Consultant shall also be 
entitled to recover the reasonable expenses of collection 
including attorney’s fees.  

2. Notification of Breach or Default: The CLIENT shall provide prompt 
written notice to the CONSULTANT if CLIENT becomes aware of any 
breach, error, omission, or inconsistency arising out of CONSULTANT’s 
services or any other alleged breach of contract or negligence by the 
CONSULTANT. The failure of CLIENT to provide such written notice 
within ten (10) days from the time CLIENT became aware of the fault, 
defect, error, omission, inconsistency or breach, shall constitute a waiver 
by CLIENT of any and all claims against the CONSULTANT arising out of 
such fault, defect, error, omission, inconsistency or breach. Emails shall 
be considered adequate written notice for purposes of this Agreement. 

3. Standard of Care: CONSULTANT shall perform its services in a 
professional manner, using that degree of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by and consistent with the standards of professionals 
providing the same services in the same or a similar locality as the 
Project. THERE ARE NO OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR 
IMPLIED, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE THAT WILL OR CAN ARISE 
OUT OF THE SERVICES PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT OR THIS 
AGREEMENT.  

4. Waiver of Consequential Damages/Limitation of Liability: CLIENT 
agrees that CONSULTANT’s aggregate liability for any and all claims that 
may be asserted by CLIENT is limited to $50,000 or to the fee paid to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement, whichever is greater. Both 
CLIENT and CONSULTANT hereby waive any right to pursue claims for 
consequential damages against one another, including any claims for lost 
profits. 

5. Representations of CLIENT: CLIENT warrants and covenants that 
sufficient funds are available or will be available upon receipt of 
CONSULTANT’s invoice to make payment in full for the services 
rendered by CONSULTANT.  

6. Ownership of Instruments of Service: All reports, plans, 
specifications, field data and notes and other documents, including all 
documents on electronic media, prepared by the CONSULTANT as 
instrument of service, shall remain the property of the CONSULTANT. 
The CONSULTANT shall retain all common law, statutory and other 
rights, including the copyright thereto. In the event of termination of this 
Agreement and upon full payment of fees owed to CONSULTANT, 

CONSULTANT shall make available to CLIENT copies of all plans and 
specifications.  

7. Change Orders: CONSULTANT will treat as a proposed change 
order any written or oral order (including directions, instructions, 
interpretations, or determinations) from CLIENT which requests changes 
in the Agreement or CONSULTANT’s Scope of Services. If 
CONSULTANT accepts the proposed change order, CONSULTANT will 
give CLIENT written notice within ten (10) days of acceptance of any 
resulting increase in CONSULTANT’s fees.  

8. Opinion of Cost/Cost Estimates: Since the CONSULTANT has no 
control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment or services furnished 
by others, or over methods of determining prices, or over competitive 
bidding or market conditions, any and all opinions as to costs rendered 
hereunder, including but not limited to opinions as to the costs of 
construction and materials, shall be made on the basis of 
CONSULTANT’S experience and qualifications and represent its 
reasonable judgment as an experienced and qualified professional 
familiar with the construction industry; but the CONSULTANT cannot 
and does not guarantee the proposals, bids or actual costs will not vary 
significantly from opinions of probable costs prepared by it. If at any time 
the CLIENT wishes assurances as to the amount of any costs, CLIENT 
shall employ an independent cost estimator to make such determination.  

9. Assignment and Third Parties: Nothing under this Agreement shall 
be construed to give any rights or benefits in this Agreement to anyone 
other than the CLIENT and CONSULTANT, and all duties and 
responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the 
sole and exclusive benefit of the CLIENT and the CONSULTANT and not 
for the benefit of any other party. Neither the CLIENT nor the 
CONSULTANT shall assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or 
interests in this Agreement without the written consent of the other, 
which shall not be unreasonably withheld. However, nothing contained 
herein shall prevent or restrict the CONSULTANT from employing 
independent subconsultants as the CONSULTANT may deem 
appropriate to assist in the performance of services hereunder.  

10. Project Site: Should CLIENT not be owner of the Project site, then 
CLIENT agrees to notify the site owner of the possibility of unavoidable 
alteration and damage to the site. CLIENT further agrees to indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless CONSULTANT against any claims by the 
CLIENT, the owner of the site, or persons having possession of the site 
which are related to such alteration or damage.  

11. Access to Site: CLIENT is responsible for providing legal and 
unencumbered access to site, including securing all necessary site access 
agreements or easements, to the extent necessary for the 
CONSULTANT to carry out its services.  

12. Survival: All of CLIENT’s obligations and liabilities, including but not 
limited to, its indemnification obligations and limitations of liability, and 
CONSULTANT’s rights and remedies with respect thereto, shall survive 
completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement.  

13. Termination: Either party may terminate the Agreement with or 
without cause upon ten (10) days advance written notice, if the other 
party has not cured or taken reasonable steps to cure the breach giving 
rise to termination within the ten (10) day notice period. If CLIENT 
terminates without cause or if CONSULTANT terminates for cause, 
CLIENT will pay CONSULTANT for all costs incurred, non-cancelable 
commitments, and fees earned to the date of termination and through 
demobilization, including any cancellation charges of vendors and 
subcontractors, as well as demobilization costs. 



 

WithersRavenel, Inc. Standard Terms & Conditions Page 2 
 Effective September 14, 2020 

14. Severability: If any provision of this Agreement, or application 
thereof to any person or circumstance, is found to be invalid then such 
provision shall be modified if possible, to fulfill the intent of the parties 
as reflected in the original provision. The remainder of this Agreement, 
or the application of such provision to persons or circumstances other 
than those as to which it is held invalid, shall not be affected thereby, and 
each provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforced to the 
fullest extent permitted by applicable law.  

15. No Waiver: No waiver by either party of any default by the other 
party in the performance of any provision of this Agreement shall 
operate as or be construed as a waiver of any future default, whether 
like or different in character.  

16. Merger, Amendment: This Agreement constitutes the entire 
Agreement between the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT and all 
negotiations, written and oral understandings between the parties are 
integrated and merged herein. This Agreement can be supplemented 
and/or amended only by a written document executed by both the 
CONSULTANT and the CLIENT. 

17. Unforeseen Occurrences: If, during the performance of services 
hereunder, any unforeseen hazardous substance, material, element of 
constituent or other unforeseen conditions or occurrences are 
encountered which affects or may affect the services, the risk involved 
in providing the service, or the recommended scope of services, 
CONSULTANT will promptly notify CLIENT thereof. Subsequent to that 
notification, CONSULTANT may: (a) if practicable, in CONSULTANT’s 
sole judgment and with approval of CLIENT, complete the original Scope 
of Services in accordance with the procedures originally intended in the 
Proposal; (b) Agree with CLIENT to modify the Scope of Services and the 
estimate of charges to include study of the previously unforeseen 
conditions or occurrences, such revision to be in writing and signed by 
the parties and incorporated herein; or (c) Terminate the services 
effective on the date of notification pursuant to the terms of the 
Agreement.  

18. Force Majeure: Should completion of any portion of the Agreement 
be delayed for causes beyond the control of or without the fault or 
negligence of CONSULTANT, including force majeure, the reasonable 
time for performance shall be extended for a period at least equal to the 
delay and the parties shall mutually agree on the terms and conditions 
upon which Agreement may be continued. Force majeure includes but is 
not restricted to acts of God, acts or failures of governmental authorities, 
acts of CLIENT’s contractors or agents, fire, floods, epidemics, 
pandemics, riots, quarantine restrictions, strikes, civil insurrections, 
freight embargoes, and unusually severe weather. 

19. Safety: CONSULTANT is not responsible for site safety or 
compliance with the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 
(“OSHA”). Job site safety remains the sole exclusive responsibility of 
CLIENT or CLIENT’s contractors, except with respect to 
CONSULTANT’S own employees. Likewise, CONSULTANT shall have no 
right to direct or stop the work of CLIENT’s contractors, agents, or 
employees.  

20. Dispute Resolution/Arbitration: Any claim or other dispute arising 
out of or related to this Agreement shall first be subject to non-binding 
mediation in accordance with the then-current Construction Industry 
Mediation Procedures of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”). 
If mediation is unsuccessful, such claim or other dispute shall be subject 
to arbitration in accordance with the AAA’s then-current Construction 
Industry Arbitration Rules. Any demand for arbitration shall be filed in 
writing with the other party and with the American Arbitration 
Association. CLIENT agrees to the inclusion in such arbitration (whether 
by initial filing, by joinder or by consolidation) of any other parties and of 
any other claims arising out of or relating to the Project or to the 
transaction or occurrence giving rise to the claim or other dispute 
between CLIENT and CONSULTANT.   

21. Independent Contractor: In carrying out its obligations, 
CONSULTANT shall always be acting as an independent contractor and 
not an employee, agent, partner or joint venturer of CLIENT. 
CONSULTANT’s work does not include any supervision or direction of 
the work of other contractors, their employees or agents, and 

CONSULTANT’s presence shall in no way create any liability on behalf 
of CONSULTANT for failure of other contractors, their employees or 
agents to properly or correctly perform their work 

22. Hazardous Substances: CLIENT agrees to advise CONSULTANT 
upon execution of this Agreement of any hazardous substances or any 
condition existing in, on or near the Project Site presenting a potential 
danger to human health, the environment or equipment. By virtue of 
entering into the Agreement or of providing services, CONSULTANT 
does not assume control of, or responsibility for, the Project site or the 
person in charge of the Project site or undertake responsibility for 
reporting to any federal, state or local public agencies, any conditions at 
the Project site that may present a potential danger to the public, health, 
safety or environment except where required of CONSULTANT by 
applicable law. In the event CONSULTANT encounters hazardous or 
toxic substances or contamination significantly beyond that originally 
represented by CLIENT, CONSULTANT may suspend or terminate the 
Agreement. CLIENT acknowledges that CONSULTANT has no 
responsibility as a generator, treater, storer, or disposer of hazardous or 
toxic substances found or identified at a site. Except to the extent that 
CONSULTANT has negligently caused such pollution or contamination, 
CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless CONSULTANT, 
from any claim or liability, arising out of CONSULTANT's performance of 
services under the Agreement and made or brought against 
CONSULTANT for any actual or threatened environmental pollution or 
contamination if the fault (as defined in N.C.G.S. 22B-1(f)(7)) of CLIENT 
or its derivative parties (as defined in N.C.G.S. 22B-1(f)(3)) is a proximate 
cause of such claim or liability. 

23. Choice of Law: The validity, interpretation, and performance of this 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
law of the State of North Carolina, excluding only its conflicts of laws 
principles.  

24. Construction Services: If construction administration and review 
services are requested by the CLIENT, CLIENT agrees that such 
administration, review, or interpretation of construction work or 
documents by CONSULTANT shall not relieve any contractor from 
liability in regard to its duty to comply with the applicable plans, 
specifications, and standards for the Project, and shall not give rise to a 
claim against CONSULTANT for contractor’s failure to perform in 
accordance with the applicable plans, specifications or standards.  

25. Field Representative: If CONSULTANT provides field services or 
construction observation services, the presence of the CONSULTANT's 
field personnel will only be for the purpose of providing observation and 
field testing of specific aspects of the Project. Should a contractor be 
involved in the Project, the CONSULTANT's responsibility does not 
include the supervision or direction of the actual work of any contractor, 
its employees, or agents. All contractors should be so advised. 
Contractors should also be informed that neither the presence of the 
CONSULTANT's field representative nor the observation and testing by 
the CONSULTANT shall excuse contractor in any way for defects in 
contractor's work. It is agreed that the CONSULTANT will not be 
responsible for job or site safety on the Project and that the 
CONSULTANT does not have the right to stop the work of any 
contractor.  

26. Submittals: CONSULTANT’s review of shop drawings and other 
submittals is to determine conformity with the design concept only. 
Review of shop drawings and submittals does not include means, 
methods, techniques, or procedures of construction, including but not 
limited to, safety requirements. 



Engineers | Planners | Surveyors 

E X H I B I T I I
Fee & Expense Schedule 

Geomatics Only

Effective January 1, 2023 – Schedule is subject to change 

Description Rate

Geomatics CAD I 100$    

Geomatics CAD II 115$    

Geomatics CAD III 130$    

Administrative Assistant 65$    

Geomatics Project Manager I 165$    

Administrative Assistant I 80$    

Geomatics Project Manager II 175$    

Administrative Assistant II 90$    

Geomatics Project Manager III 185$    

Administrative Assistant III 100$    

Geomatics Project Professional I 145$    

Marketing Administration I 90$    

Geomatics Project Professional II 170$    

Marketing Administration II 115$    

Geomatics Principal 235$    

Director of Marketing 145$    

Geomatics Remote Sensing Crew I 210$    

Office Administration 70$    

Geomatics Remote Sensing Crew II 295$    

Office Administrator I 115$    

Geomatics Survey Crew I 150$    

Office Administrator II 120$    

Geomatics Survey Crew II (2 Man) 190$    

Office Administrator III 125$    

Geomatics Survey Crew III (3 Man) 225$    

Geomatics Senior Manager 210$    

Expert Witness 400$    

Geomatics Survey Tech I 60$    

Geomatics Survey Tech II 90$    

Bond Prints (Per Sheet) 1.75$   

Geomatics Survey Tech III 115$    

Mylar Prints (Per Sheet) 11.00$ 

Geomatics Survey Tech IV 125$    

Mileage Per IRS

Geomatics Sr. Technical Consultant 210$    

Geomatics SUE Crew 1 190$    

Subcontractor Fees (Markup) 1.15

Geomatics SUE Crew 2 260$    

Expenses / Reprod. / Permits (Markup) 1.15

Delivery – Project Specific (Distance & Priority)

Expenses

Other

Administrative

Geomatics



 

WithersRavenel   
Our People. Your Success. 

 

 115 MacKenan Drive | Cary, NC 27511 
t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. F-1479 

Asheville | Cary | Charlotte | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Southern Pines | Wilmington 
 

 
 

 

September 25, 2023 
 
Marty Wynn, PE 
AVCON, INC. 
6230 Carolina Beach Road 
Wilmington, NC 28412 
 
RE:  Proposal for Professional Services 

Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ) – Approach Clearing 
Plymouth, Washington County, North Carolina 
WR Project No.: 23-1093 

 
Dear Mr. Wynn: 
 
WithersRavenel is pleased to present this proposal for Professional Services to AVCON, INC., our “Client”.  
This Proposal for Professional Services is for the Approach Clearing project at the Plymouth Municipal 
Airport (PMZ), located at 1069 Plymouth Airport Road in Plymouth, Washington County, North Carolina. 
The project limits are specified in the attached exhibit provided by AVCON. 

The Scope of Services contained herein includes project administration, wetland delineation, threatened & 
endangered species survey, preparation of a site report of findings, and preparation of the Documented 
CATEX. 

We will be able to start this work within 30 days following the return of the fully executed agreement. 

If you have any questions or concerns, please let us know.  We look forward to the opportunity to work 
together on this project. 

  

Sincerely 

WithersRavenel 
 

 
 
Gary Kreiser 
NEPA Specialist 
 
 
 
Attachment 
 



WithersRavenel 
Our People. Your Success. 

 

 
Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ) – Approach Clearing WR No. 23-1093 
09/25/2023 Page 1 

 
 

Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ) 
Approach Clearing Project 

Plymouth, Washington County, NC 
Proposal for Professional Services 

 

A.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
This Proposal for Professional service is for the Approach Clearing project at the Plymouth Municipal Airport 
(PMZ), located at 1069 Plymouth Airport Road in Plymouth, Washington County, North Carolina. The 
project limits are specified in the attached exhibit provided by AVCON. The Scope of Services contained 
herein includes project administration, wetland delineation, threatened & endangered species survey, 
preparation of a site report of findings, and preparation the Documented CATEX. 

B.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 Project Management and Administration 

 Coordinate with Client’s project team throughout the course of the project; 
 Coordinate submittals with the Client; 
 Participate in conference calls, coordination meetings and review meetings with the Client regarding 

findings of site review, report preparation, submittals, and permitting requirements.  It is anticipated 
that WR will attend up to two meetings.   

 Manage internal project processes, communication, and resources. 

Task 2 – Environmental Site Review 

Wetland Delineation 
 Obtain preliminary site information, including aerial photos, USGS Quadrangle Maps, Washington 

County Soil Survey, Washington County GIS data, prior to conducting site visit. 
 Conduct site review to determine if the project site contains jurisdictional wetlands, streams and 

riparian buffers.  Jurisdictional wetlands will be determined using criteria set forth in the 1987 US 
Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) Wetlands Delineation Manual and applicable Regional 
Supplement.  Streams will be assessed using criteria set forth in the NC Division of Water Quality 
Identification Methods for the Origins of Intermittent and Perennial Streams (2010). WR will 
delineate all jurisdictional wetlands and starting point of streams in the field using sequentially 
numbered Wetland Delineation flagging.   

 Locate wetland flags and stream start point flags using Trimble GPS unit.  GPS data will be used to 
prepare exhibits for wetland report. 

Field Survey for Federal and State Listed Threatened & Endangered Species 
 Complete a review of literature and data from the NC DEQ, USFWS and NCNHP to determine listed 

species known to have ranges extending into Washington County that are likely to occur within the 
project. 

 Conduct a pedestrian survey of the project study area to document vegetative communities and 
determine presence/absence of potential habitat for listed species. 

 Conduct a pedestrian survey of the potential habitat within the project study area to determine the 
presence of protected species and/or potential habitat in which protected species may occur. 

 Use GPS to locate any occurrences of listed species observed during the pedestrian survey. 
 Prepare brief letter report documenting the results of threatened & endangered species survey and 

submit to USFWS for concurrence. 

 



WithersRavenel 
Our People. Your Success. 

 

 
Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ) – Approach Clearing WR No. 23-1093 
09/25/2023 Page 2 

 
 

Task 3 – Site Report 
 Upon completion of the delineation and threatened & endangered species survey, WR will prepare 

a letter report documenting the findings of the field review, as well as provide Biological Opinions 
on the likelihood for the project to affect federal and state listed threatened and/or endangered 
species. 

Task 4 – Preparation of Responses to Specific Sections of Documented CATEX 
 WR will prepare responses to the CATEX sections/subsections. 
 WR will assist Client with preparation of description of project and project area. 
 WR will provide an electronic copy of the prepared responses to Client for incorporation in the final 

Documented CATEX document. 
 In the event that the NCDOA issues a Request for More Information specific to the sections of the 

Documented CATEX prepared by WR, WR will prepare a response to one (1) Request for More 
Information and provide in electronic format to Client for submittal to the NCDOA. 

Task 5 – Expenses 
Expenses directly related to fieldwork and production including but not limited to: 

 Mileage 
 

Estimated Reimbursable Expenses 

Type Reason for Expense Amount Reimbursement 
Rate Total 

Mileage Environmental Site Report 260 miles 
(round trip) $0.655/mile $170.30 

   TOTAL $170.30 

   Proposal 
Amount $170.00 

 
C.  EXCLUSIONS 
This proposal does not include the following:  

 404/401 Permitting 
 Site Design and/or Engineering Services 
 Section 7 Consultation with USFWS 
 Surveying 
 Legal representation 

D.  ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
Additional requested progress meetings or excluded tasks that are not included in the above listed scope of 
services are considered additional services. Should WithersRavenel be requested to assist with other 
services, the services will be provided under a contract amendment. 

E.  CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 
The following items will be provided by the Client and WithersRavenel will rely upon the accuracy and 
completeness of this information: 

 Access to property described 
 Any legal representation requiring an attorney of law 
 Submittal/Application Fees 

 



WithersRavenel 
Our People. Your Success. 

 

 
Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ) – Approach Clearing WR No. 23-1093 
09/25/2023 Page 3 

 
 

F.  COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES 
WithersRavenel proposes to provide the services outlined above on a fixed fee (lump sum) basis as shown 
below, plus reimbursable expenses.  Client will only be charged for tasks provided. 

Task Number Task Name Cost 

Task 1 Project Management and Administration $729.00 

Task 2 Environmental Site Review $3,965.00 

Task 3 Site Report $2,600.00 

Task 4 Documented CATEX $10,362.00 

Task 5 Expenses $170.00 

 TOTAL $17,826.00 

 

Invoices will be based on the percentage of the project accomplished during the billing period.  Payment is 
due upon receipt of invoice.   

G.  TIMELINE FOR SERVICES 
WR will begin work within 30 days upon receipt of executed contract. 

H.  ACCEPTANCE 
Receipt of an executed copy of this agreement will serve as the written agreement between WithersRavenel 
and Talbert & Bright for the basic services outlined in Section B of this document.  

 

WithersRavenel 

 
 

Gary Kreiser 
NEPA Specialist 
 
 
Exhibit I – Project Area Exhibit  
Exhibit II – NCDOT Approved Rate Sheets 

AVCON, INC. 
 

By:  

Title:  

Date:  



RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA

RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA

ROFA ROFA ROFA

ROFA ROFA ROFA

R
O

FA

TOFA TOFA TOFA

TOFA TOFA

RPZ
RPZ

RPZ
RPZ

R
PZ

R
PZ

EXISTING RUNWAY 3 PART 77
34:1 APPROACH SURFACE
NON-PRECISION, TYPE C
500' x 3,500' x 10,000'

AIRPORT PROPERTY

APPROXIMATELY
17.6 ACRES OF
OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL

ENGINEERS & PLANNERS
AVCON, INC. RUNWAY 3 OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL - PROJECT LIMITS

PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

DATE:        08/17/2023AIRPORT: PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT PROJECT NO:  2023.0317.01www.avconinc.com

EXHIBIT
6230 CAROLINA BEACH ROAD

 WILMINGTON, NC 28412
OFFICE: (704) 954-9008

600'

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

300'0' 1,200'

NorthLEGEND
EXISTING 34:1 APPROACH SURFACE

PROPOSED OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL

OBSTACLE (TREE)

1



RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA

RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA

ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA

ROFA ROFA ROFA ROFA

TOFA

EXISTING RUNWAY 21 PART 77
34:1 APPROACH SURFACE
NON-PRECISION, TYPE C
500' x 3,500' x 10,000'

AIRPORT PROPERTY

APPROXIMATELY
15.4 ACRES OF

OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL

ENGINEERS & PLANNERS
AVCON, INC. RUNWAY 21 OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL - PROJECT LIMITS

PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

DATE:        08/17/2023AIRPORT: PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT PROJECT NO:  2023.0317.01www.avconinc.com

EXHIBIT
6230 CAROLINA BEACH ROAD

 WILMINGTON, NC 28412
OFFICE: (704) 954-9008

1000'

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

500'0' 2,000'

NorthLEGEND
EXISTING 34:1 APPROACH SURFACE

PROPOSED OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL

OBSTACLE (TREE)

1



Meeting Number of meetings Hours Total Hours
AVCON 2 1 2.0

Phone calls 6 0.5 3.0
Total 5.0

Rate
$59.00
$48.25
$36.25
$34.25
$23.25

Overhead Rate 172.15%
Overhead Subtotal

Profit 11.00% +
Capital Costs 0.27% +
Subtotal - Labor Expenses

Lump Sum

USE

5.0
EVS03 $0.00

EVS01 - Environmental Scientist 1

Task 1 - Project Admin (EVSPS Only)

Estimated Costs
$0.00

Classification
EVSTC
EVSPS

EVS01

Labor Expenses

$241.25

$0.00

Estimated Manhours

$0.00

State Audited 
Overhead Rates

Subtotal - Labor Expenses 
(without Multiplier $241.25

$415.31+
$656.56

EVS02

EVS02 - Environmental Scientist 2

EVSPS - Environmental Senior Project Scientist/NEPA Specialist
EVS03 - Environmental Scientist 3

$72.22
$0.65

$729.44

$729.44Total - Task 1 - Project Admin

$729.00

EVSTC - Environmental Senior Technical Consultant



Task EVSTC EVSPS EVS03 EVS02 EVS01
Office/CAD 2 2 4
Travel Time 4 4
Fieldwork 4 4
Mapping 1 6 6

Totals 0 11 0 16 10

Rate
$59.00
$48.25
$36.25
$34.25
$23.25

Overhead Rate 172.15%
Overhead Subtotal

Profit 11.00% +
Capital Costs 0.27% +
Subtotal - Labor Expenses

Lump Sum

USE

EVSTC 0 $0.00

EVS02 16 $548.00
EVS03 0 $0.00
EVSPS 11 $530.75

$3.54

EVS01 10 $232.50
Subtotal - Labor Expenses 

(without Multiplier $1,311.25
State Audited 

Overhead Rates
+ $2,257.32

$3,568.57

$392.54

Labor Expenses
Classification Estimated Manhours Estimated Costs

Task 2 - Environmental Site Review (Delineation & T&E Survey)

EVSTC - Environmental Senior Technical Consultant
EVSPS - Environmental Senior Project Scientist/NEPA Specialist

EVS02 - Environmental Scientist 2

$3,964.65

Total - Task 2 - Enviro Site Review $3,964.65

$3,965.00

EVS03 - Environmental Scientist 3



Task EVSTC EVSPS EVS03 EVS02 EVS01
Office/CAD 1 4 4
Report Prep 2 8 8

Totals 0 3 12 0 12

Rate
$59.00
$48.25
$36.25
$34.25
$23.25

Overhead Rate 172.15%
Overhead Subtotal

Profit 11.00% +
Capital Costs 0.27% +
Subtotal - Labor Expenses

Lump Sum

USE

EVS02 0 $0.00

State Audited 
Overhead Rates

+ $1,478.34
$2,337.09

EVS01 12 $279.00

EVSPS - Environmental Senior Project Scientist/NEPA Specialist
EVS03 - Environmental Scientist 3

$2,596.49

Total - Task 3 - Site Report

EVSTC 0

Task 3 - Site Report

EVS03 12 $435.00

$0.00
EVSPS 3

Labor Expenses
Classification Estimated Manhours Estimated Costs

EVSTC - Environmental Senior Technical Consultant

$257.08
$2.32

$144.75

$2,596.49

$2,600.00

Subtotal - Labor Expenses 
(without Multiplier $858.75



Task EVSTC EVSPS EVS03 EVS02 EVS01
Office/CAD 4 8 8
CATEX Prep 4 24 24 24

Totals 4 28 0 32 32

Rate
$59.00
$48.25
$36.25
$34.25
$23.25

Overhead Rate 172.15%
Overhead Subtotal

Profit 11.00% +
Capital Costs 0.27% +
Subtotal - Labor Expenses

Lump Sum

USE

Task 4 - CATEX Prep

EVS03 0 $0.00
EVSPS 28 $1,351.00

Classification Estimated Manhours Estimated Costs
EVSTC 4 $236.00

EVS02 32 $1,096.00
EVS01 32

Labor Expenses

$744.00
Subtotal - Labor Expenses 

(without Multiplier $3,427.00
State Audited 

Overhead Rates
+ $5,899.58

$9,326.58

EVSTC - Environmental Senior Technical Consultant
EVSPC - Environmental Senior Project Scientist/NEPA Specialist
EVS03 - Environmental Scientist 3

$1,025.92
$9.25

$10,361.76

Total - Task 5 - CATEX Prep $10,361.76

$10,362.00



Mileage - RT
$0.655

Enviro Site Review 260 1 $170.30

Agency Site Meeting $0.00

Total $170.30

Lump Sum

USE

Total - Task 8 - Expenses $170.30

$170.00

Task 5 - Expenses - Mileage

Employee No. of Trips



AVCON Project Number DATE: 1/15/2024

Item Description Amount Method NCDOA Code

Task 1 Pre-Design Phase Services A104
Direct Labor Costs and Expenses $14,070.00
Subs-CATEX (Withers) $17,826.00
Subs-Survey (Withers) $9,520.00

$41,416.00 LS

Task 2 90% Design Phase Services
90% Design Phase Services

Direct Labor Costs and Expenses $68,910.00
90% Design Phase Total $68,910.00 LS A104

Task 3 100% Design Phase Services
100% Design Phase Services

Direct Labor Costs and Expenses $30,755.00
$30,755.00 LS A104

Task 4 Bidding Phase Services
Direct Labor Costs and Expenses $13,242.00

$13,242.00 LS

Task 5 Grant Adminstration Services
Direct Labor Costs and Expenses $9,293.00

$9,293.00 LS

Total $163,616.00

2023.0317.01

Bid Phase Services Total

Pre-Design Phase Total

Grant Adminstration Services Total

A104

A104

100% Design Phase Total

PROFESSIONAL FEE SUMMARY

DESIGN AND BIDDING PHASE SERVICES

OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PROJECT

WASHINGTON COUNTY, NC

FOR



ENGINEERING FEE COMPUTATION FOR PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PROJECT

TASK 1:  PRE-DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

Task 1-Pre-Design Phase Services
Scope and Fee Development 4 4 8
General Project Management / Project Coordination 8 8 16
Project Kick Off Meetings (1), Agenda, Notes and Site Visit 1 2 8 8 2 20
Survey Review and Coordination 2 4 2 8
CATEX Subcontractor Coordination 4 2 6
Draft CATEX Review, Comments 4 2 6
CATEX Submittal, Approval 2 2 4

Total
Trips

1

Total Manhours By Category 0 14 32 18 4 0 0 68
Hourly Salary Rate $88.46 $84.13 $70.67 $43.75 $43.75 $40.00 $26.00

Payroll Burden $0.00 $1,177.88 $2,261.54 $787.50 $175.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total Payroll Burden $4,401.92
General Overhead 180.38% $7,940.19

Subtotal $12,342.11
Profit 11.00% $1,357.63

Facilities Cost of Capital 3.2136% $141.46
Total $13,841.20

Direct Expenses (see below) $227.80

 SubTotal - Pre-Design Phase (USE) $14,070.00

CATEX (Withers) $17,826.00
Survey (Withers) $9,520.00

 Total - Pre-Design Phase (USE) $41,416.00
DIRECT COSTS UNIT QUANTITY MILES UNIT COST TOTAL

TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Huntersville - PMZ (580 miles/trip avg.)) Trips 0 580 $0.670 $0.00
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Wilmington - PMZ (340 miles/trip avg.)) Trips 1 340 $0.670 $227.80

PER DIEM Each 0 $46.50 $0.00
LODGING Each 0 $95.00 $0.00
PRINTING/REPRODUCTIONS - SEE DETAILED REPRODUCTION EXPENSES BACKUP SHEET LS 0 $0.00 $0.00
POSTAGE/OVERNIGHT DELIVERIES LS 0 $0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL DIRECT COSTS $227.80

Sr. Project 
Manager

Engineer / 
Planner

Engineer / 
Planner

Designer/CAD 
Tech

Admin / 
Clerical

TOTAL 
HOURS

ITEMS OF WORK

N
o

. M
tg

s/
 

fr
eq

u
en

cy

H
rs

/m
tg

 o
r 

vi
si

t 
an

d
   

# 
st

af
f

T
ri

p
s

Principal 
Regional 
Manager



ENGINEERING FEE COMPUTATION FOR PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PROJECT

TASK 2:  90% DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

Task 2 - 90% Design Phase Services
Design Project Management / Project Coordination / Design Meeting 4 24 8 4 40
Geometric Control/Layout 2 2 8 12
Clearing and Grubbing Layout 4 8 16 28
Grading Design 8 16 40 64
Erosion & Sediment Control Layout & Design 8 24 40 72
Develop 90% Construction Plans 65 98 163
Specifications 2 4 4 8 18
Quantities and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 2 2 4 8
Engineer's Design Report 4 4 8 16
Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) Review of Plans & Specs 8 8
90% Project Design and Coordination Meeting and Site Visit 2 2 2 4 10

Prepare Erosion & Sediment Control Application and Submit to NCDEQ 8 8 16

Develop Construction Safety Phasing Plan and Checklist 4 4 2 10
Develop 7460 Form Exhibit 2 2

Total
Trips

0

Total Manhours By Category 0 14 56 82 207 98 10 467
Hourly Salary Rate $88.46 $84.13 $70.67 $43.75 $43.03 $40.00 $26.00

Payroll Burden $0.00 $1,177.88 $3,957.69 $3,587.50 $8,907.21 $3,920.00 $260.00
Total Payroll Burden $21,810.29
General Overhead 180.38% $39,341.40

Subtotal $61,151.68
Profit 11.00% $6,726.69

Facilities Cost of Capital 3.2136% $700.90
Total $68,579.26

Direct Expenses (see below) $329.96

 Total - 90% Design Phase (USE) $68,910.00

DIRECT COSTS UNIT QUANTITY MILES UNIT COST TOTAL
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Huntersville - PMZ (580 miles/trip avg.)) Trips 0 580 $0.670 $0.00
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Wilmington - PMZ (340 miles/trip avg.)) 0 340 $0.670 $0.00

PER DIEM Each 0 $46.50 $0.00
LODGING Each 0 $95.00 $0.00
PRINTING/REPRODUCTIONS - SEE DETAILED REPRODUCTION EXPENSES BACKUP SHEET LS 1 $329.96 $329.96
POSTAGE/OVERNIGHT DELIVERIES LS 0 $0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL DIRECT COSTS $329.96

Sr. Project 
Manager

Engineer / 
Planner

Engineer / 
Planner

Designer/CAD 
Tech

Admin / 
Clerical

TOTAL 
HOURS

ITEMS OF WORK

N
o

. M
tg

s/
 

fr
eq

u
en

cy

H
rs

/m
tg

 o
r 

vi
si

t 
an

d
   

# 
st

af
f

T
ri

p
s

Principal 
Regional 
Manager



ENGINEERING FEE COMPUTATION FOR PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PROJECT

TASK 3:  100% DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

Task 3 - 100% Design Phase Services
Incorporate 90% Design Comments 4 4 8 16
Finalize Geometric Control/Layout 2 2 4
Finalize Clearing and Grubbing Layout 2 2 8 12
Finalize Grading Design 4 8 16 28
Finalize Erosion & Sediment Control Layout & Design 4 8 20 32
Develop 100% Construction Plans 12 17 29
Specifications 2 2 2 8 14
Quantities and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 2 2 2 6
Engineer's Design Report 2 2 4 8
Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) Review of Plans & Specs 8 8
100% Project Design and Coordination Meeting 2 2 2 4 10
Issue for Bid Documents 4 8 8 4 4 28

Address Erosion & Sediment Control Application Comments, Finalize Permit 4 8 12

Total
Trips

0

Total Manhours By Category 0 10 22 44 90 29 12 207
Hourly Salary Rate $88.46 $84.13 $70.67 $43.75 $43.03 $40.00 $26.00

Payroll Burden $0.00 $841.35 $1,554.81 $1,925.00 $3,872.70 $1,160.00 $312.00
Total Payroll Burden $9,665.85
General Overhead 180.38% $17,435.27

Subtotal $27,101.12
Profit 11.00% $2,981.12

Facilities Cost of Capital 3.2136% $310.62
Total $30,392.87

Direct Expenses (see below) $361.51

 Total - 90% Design Phase (USE) $30,755.00

DIRECT COSTS UNIT QUANTITY MILES UNIT COST TOTAL
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Huntersville - PMZ (580 miles/trip avg.)) Trips 0 580 $0.670 $0.00
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Wilmington - PMZ (340 miles/trip avg.)) 0 340 $0.670 $0.00

PER DIEM Each 0 $46.50 $0.00
LODGING Each 0 $95.00 $0.00
PRINTING/REPRODUCTIONS - SEE DETAILED REPRODUCTION EXPENSES BACKUP SHEET LS 1 $361.51 $361.51
POSTAGE/OVERNIGHT DELIVERIES LS 0 $0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL DIRECT COSTS $361.51

Sr. Project 
Manager

Engineer / 
Planner

Engineer / 
Planner

Designer/CAD 
Tech

Admin / 
Clerical

TOTAL 
HOURS

ITEMS OF WORK

N
o

. M
tg

s/
 

fr
eq

u
en

cy

H
rs

/m
tg

 o
r 

vi
si

t 
an

d
   

# 
st

af
f

T
ri

p
s

Principal 
Regional 
Manager



ENGINEERING FEE COMPUTATION FOR PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PROJECT

TASK 4:  BIDDING PHASE SERVICES

Task 4 - Bidding Phase Services
Coordinate Bid Advertisement and Print/Distribute Bid Docs 2 2 4
Arrange/Attend/Conduct Pre-Bid Meeting 1 8 1 8 8 16
Respond to Questions from Bidders and Issue Addenda 2 4 4 2 12
Arrange/Attend/Conduct Bid Opening and Tabulate Bids 1 8 1 8 8
Tabulate Bids and CreateCertifed Bid Tab 2 2 4
Review Bid Packages for Compliance with Project Requirements 2 2 4
Recommend Award to Airport Staff and NCDOA 2 2
Prepare/Review Construction Contract Documents for Airport Staff 2 2 4
Issue Released for Construction Documents 2 8 8 4 22

Total Trips 2

Total Manhours By Category 0 0 26 24 16 0 10 76
Hourly Salary Rate $88.46 $84.13 $70.67 $43.75 $43.03 $40.00 $26.00

Payroll Burden $0.00 $0.00 $1,837.50 $1,050.00 $688.48 $0.00 $260.00
Total Payroll Burden $3,835.98
General Overhead 180.38% $6,919.34

Subtotal $10,755.32
Profit 11.00% $1,183.09

Facilities Cost of Capital 3.2136% $123.27
Total $12,061.68

Direct Expenses (see below) $1,179.60

 Total - Bidding $13,242.00

DIRECT COSTS UNIT QUANTITY MILES UNIT COST TOTAL
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Huntersville - PMZ (580 miles/trip avg.)) Trips 0 580 $0.670 $0.00
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Wilmington - PMZ (340 miles/trip avg.)) 2 340 $0.670 $455.60

PER DIEM Each 0 $46.50 $0.00
LODGING Each 0 $95.00 $0.00
PRINTING/REPRODUCTIONS - SEE DETAILED REPRODUCTION EXPENSES BACKUP SHEET LS 1 $724.00 $724.00
POSTAGE/OVERNIGHT DELIVERIES LS 0 $0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL DIRECT COSTS $1,179.60

Principal 
Regional 
Manager

Engineer / 
Planner

Sr. Project 
Manager

ITEMS OF WORK
TOTAL 
HOURS

Engineer / 
Planner

Designer/CAD 
Tech

Admin / 
Clerical

N
o

. M
tg

s
/ 

fr
e

q
u

e
n

c
y

H
rs

/m
tg

 o
r 

v
is

it
   

   
 

a
n

d
 #

 s
ta

ff

T
ri

p
s



ENGINEERING FEE COMPUTATION FOR PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
OBSTRUCTION REMOVAL PROJECT

TASK 5:  GRANT ADMINISTRATION

Task 5 - Grants Administration Services
Assist Client with Funding Agency Request for Aid, Requests for Reimbursements and Grant 
Administration/Compliance Including:

Grant Applications, Forms and Support Documents 4 8 12
Project Schedule and Cash Flow 2 1 3
QSR Progress Reports 2 2 4
Interim Reimbursements (5) 10 15 25
Grant Closeout 2 6 8
Other Related Documents, Submissions, and Grant Processes Required by NCDOA and County 4 4 8

Total Manhours By Category 0 24 0 0 0 0 36 60
Hourly Salary Rate $88.46 $84.13 $70.67 $43.75 $43.03 $40.00 $26.00

Payroll Burden $0.00 $2,019.23 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $936.00
Total Payroll Burden $2,955.23
General Overhead 180.38% $5,330.65

Subtotal $8,285.88
Profit 11.00% $911.45

Facilities Cost of Capital 3.2136% $94.97
Total $9,292.29

Direct Expenses (see below) $0.00

 Total - Grants Administration Services $9,293.00

DIRECT COSTS UNIT QUANTITY MILES UNIT COST TOTAL
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Huntersville - PMZ (580 miles/trip avg.)) Trips 0 580 $0.670 $0.00
TRIPS/TRAVEL (round trip: Wilmington - PMZ (340 miles/trip avg.)) 0 340 $0.670 $0.00

PER DIEM Each 0 $46.50 $0.00
LODGING Each 0 $95.00 $0.00
PRINTING/REPRODUCTIONS - SEE DETAILED REPRODUCTION EXPENSES BACKUP SHEET LS 0 $0.00 $0.00
POSTAGE/OVERNIGHT DELIVERIES LS 0 $0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL DIRECT COSTS $0.00

Principal 
Regional 
Manager

Sr. Project 
Manager

Sr. Project 
Manager

ITEMS OF WORK
TOTAL 
HOURS

Engineer / 
Planner

Designer/CAD 
Tech

Admin / 
Clerical

N
o

. 
M

tg
s/

 
fr

eq
u

en
cy

H
rs

/m
tg

 o
r 

vi
si

t 
  

  
  

an
d

 #
 s

ta
ff

T
ri

p
s



Reproductions

90% DESIGN
No. of 
Dwgs.    

(34 x 68)

No. of 
Dwgs.    

(6 sf ea)

No. of 
Pages   

8.5 x 11

No. of 
Pages   

8.5 x 11

No. of 
Pages   
11 x 17

No. of 
Pages   
11 x 17

Covers Bindings
Submittal 

Sets
Total Cost

B&W Color B&W Color B&W Color
$3.50 $8.62 $0.09 $0.83 $0.15 $1.66 $0.50 $0.50

Meeting Agendas and Notes $0.00
90% Review Plans (11"x17") 33 1 1 $5.45
Sedimentation and Erosion Control Permit Package (Submittal, 2 Sets Each) 33 100 33 1 $298.41
General Provisions and Tech Specs 200 1 1 1 $19.00
Engineer's Report 25 1 1 $2.75
CSPP 40 5 1 $4.35

Total $329.96

100% DESIGN
No. of 
Dwgs.    

(34 x 68)

No. of 
Dwgs.    

(6 sf ea)

No. of 
Pages   

8.5 x 11

No. of 
Pages   

8.5 x 11

No. of 
Pages   
11 x 17

No. of 
Pages   
11 x 17

Covers Bindings
Submittal 

Sets
Total Cost

B&W Color B&W Color B&W Color
$3.50 $8.62 $0.09 $0.83 $0.15 $1.66 $0.50 $0.50

Meeting Agendas and Notes $0.00
100% Review Plans (11"x17") 33 1 2 $10.90
Sedimentation and Erosion Control Permit Package (Resubmittal, 2 Sets Each) 33 100 33 1 $298.41
General Provisions and Tech Specs 200 1 1 2 $38.00
Engineer's Report 25 1 2 $5.50
CSPP 40 5 2 $8.70

Total $361.51

IFC
No. of 
Dwgs.    

(34 x 68)

No. of 
Dwgs.    

(6 sf ea)

No. of 
Pages   

8.5 x 11

No. of 
Pages   

8.5 x 11

No. of 
Pages   
11 x 17

No. of 
Pages   
11 x 17

Covers Bindings
Submittal 

Sets
Total Cost

B&W Color B&W Color B&W Color
$3.50 $8.62 $0.09 $0.83 $0.15 $1.66 $0.50 $0.50

Meeting Agendas and Notes $0.00
IFC Plans (22"x34") 33 1 5 $580.00
IFC Plans (11"x17") 33 1 5 $27.25
General Provisions and Tech Specs 200 1 1 5 $95.00
CSPP 40 5 5 $21.75

Total $724.00



List of Drawings/Plans Sheets

Total 90% 100%

Cover Sheet 1 1 1 1 1 2
Index of Drawings, Bid Schedules and/or Summary of Quantities 1 1 1 1 2 3
Legend and Abbreviations, General Notes 1 1 1 1 2 3
Survey Control Plan 1 1 1 2 4 6
Access Control Plan/Staging Area/Haul Routes/Notes 1 1 1 2 6 8
Safety and Security Notes 1 1 1 2 2 4
Safety Plans, Notes & Details 1 1 1 2 4 6
Construction Phasing Plan Overview 1 1 1 4 8 12
Clearing and Grubbing (6 Sheets) 6 6 6 18 24 42
Grading Plans (6 Sheets) 6 6 6 18 24 42
Grading Notes and Details 1 1 1 2 2 4
Erosion and Sediment Notes (2 Sheets) 2 2 2 2 4 6
Erosion and Sediment Control Plan (6 sheets) 6 6 6 18 24 42
Erosion and Sediment Control Details (4) 4 4 4 4 8 12

TOTAL  PLAN SHEETS 33 33 33 0 0 77 115 0 192

90% Design Submittal (rounded) - 85% effort 0 0 65 98 0 163
100% / Final Submittal (rounded) - 15% effort 0 0 12 17 0 29

Engineer / 
Planner

PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

DESIGN AND BIDDING PHASE SERVICES

Preparation of Construction Drawings

Submittals Project 
Manager

Designer/CAD 
Tech

Admin / 
Clerical

Senior 
Project 

Manager
Total MHs







AVCON, INC.  CONTRACT FORM 
   

 

 
C-1 

PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT                                           RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION  
AIRFIELD ELECTRICAL REHABILITATION  CONTRACT 

 CONTRACT FORM 

THIS AGREEMENT is dated the                      day of                            in the year 2024 by and between 
WASHINGTON COUNTY (hereinafter called Owner) and   SOUTHEAST SITE SERVICES, LLC 
(hereinafter called Contractor).  Owner and Contractor, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter 
set forth, agree as follows: 
 
Article 1. NOTICE. 
 
TAKE NOTICE:  THIS CONTRACT IS SUBJECT TO ARBITRATION PURSUANT TO THE LAWS OF 
THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA.   
 
This same Notice shall be placed on all contracts, subcontracts, purchase orders, agreements and 
bonds relating to this Project or the Work. 
 
Article 2. WORK. 
 
Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents.  The Work is 
generally described as the AIRFIELD ELECTRICAL REHABILITATION project and includes removal of 
existing electrical, replacement of runway edge and runway threshold/end lighting, PAPI installation, REIL 
installation, beacon replacement, vault modifications, electrical improvements, and sodding.  
 
Article 3. ENGINEER. 
 
The Project has been designed by:  AVCON, Inc 
      6230 Carolina Beach Road 
      Wilmington, NC 28412 
   
who is hereinafter called Engineer and who is to act as Owner's representative, assume all duties and 
responsibilities and have the rights and authority assigned to Engineer in the Contract Documents in 
connection with completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
Article 4. CONTRACT TIME. 
 
4.1 The Work will be completed and ready for final payment within the time specified in General 

Contract Provisions Section 80 as described in Contract Drawings for Final Acceptance in 
accordance with General Contract Provisions, Paragraph 50-15. 

 
4.2 Liquidated Damages.  Owner and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence of this 

Agreement and that Owner will suffer financial loss if the Work is not substantially complete within 
the time and phases described in these Contract documents.  They also recognize the delays, 
expense and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding, the actual loss 
suffered by the Owner if the Work is not completed on time.  Accordingly, instead of requiring any 
such proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) 
Contractor shall pay Owner the amounts stipulated in General Contract Provisions Section 80 for 
each calendar day that expires after the time specified.  

 
4.3 Contractor further understands and hereby expressly agrees that in addition to liquidated damages 

specified in Article 4.2 above, to pay Owner the actual costs to Owner for any inspector or 



AVCON, INC.  CONTRACT FORM 
   

 

 
C-2 

PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT                                           RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION  
AIRFIELD ELECTRICAL REHABILITATION  CONTRACT 

inspectors necessarily employed by OWNER on the Work and the actual costs to Owner for 
Engineer's observation of construction and project representative services including all travel and 
subsistence expenses after the date specified for the project completion until the Work is completed 
and ready for final payment.  Further, Contractor agrees that the sums to be paid Owner may be 
deducted from the sum due Contractor for work performed as provided in Section 90 of the General 
Provisions. 

 
Article 5. CONTRACT PRICE. 
 
5.1 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, 

Unit Prices submitted on FEBRUARY 15, 2024  and per Unit Bid Prices times the actual approved 
and accepted quantities with initial contract amount of $1,025,250.00 . 

 
Article 6. PAYMENT PROCEDURES. 
 
Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Section 90 of the General Provisions 
but in no case shall submit more than one (1) Application for Payment per month.  Applications for Payment 
will be processed by Engineer as provided in the General Provisions. 
 
6.1 Progress Payments.  Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on 

the basis of Contractor's Applications for Payment as recommended by Engineer, within thirty (30) 
days after receipt of Contractor's verified and approved Application for Payment.  All progress 
payments will be on the basis of the progress of the Work based on the number of units completed 
as determined by Engineer. 

 
6.1.1. Progress payments will be made in an amount equal to the percentage indicated below, 

but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments previously made and less such amounts 
as Engineer shall determine, or Owner may withhold, in accordance with Section 90 of the 
General Provisions. 
90% of Work completed as determined by Engineer.   

 
90% of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (but delivered, suitably 
stored and accompanied by documentation satisfactory to Owner as provided in paragraph 
90-07 of the General Provisions). 

 
6.1.2 With each application (excluding the first pay application) for payment, Contractor shall 

submit a certified report stating that each Subcontractor has been paid for 90% of the bid 
item quantities and/or any stored materials as approved for payment by Engineer in all 
previous applications for payment. 

 
6.1.3 With each application for payment, Contractor shall submit an updated CPM schedule 

delineating activities completed and those remaining to be completed.  Additionally, he 
needs to identify any logic changes made since submission of his first (baseline) CPM 
schedule.  Detailed Bar Chart, Network Diagram and Standard Report for all activities are 
required and shall be submitted. 

 
6.1.4 With each application for payment, Contractor shall submit a Certified Sales Tax Report.  

This report must be current within 14 days of the requested Application for Payment. 
 



AVCON, INC.  CONTRACT FORM 
   

 

 
C-3 

PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT                                           RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION  
AIRFIELD ELECTRICAL REHABILITATION  CONTRACT 

6.1.5 With each application for payment Contractor shall submit the Certified Payroll Report for 
his organization as well as all of his Subcontractors.   This Report must be current within 
14 days of the requested Application for Payment. 

 
6.2 Final Payment.  Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Section 50 

of the General Provisions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as recommended 
by Engineer as provided in Paragraph 90-08 of the General Provisions. 

 
Article 7. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS. 
 
In order to induce Owner to enter into this Agreement, Contractor makes the following representations: 
 
7.1 Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, Work, site, 

locality, and all local conditions and Laws and Regulations that in any manner may affect cost, 
progress, performance or furnishing of the Work. 

 
7.2 Contractor has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for obtaining and carefully 

studying) all such examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports and studies which 
pertain to the subsurface or physical conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect 
the cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work as Contractor considers necessary for 
the performance or furnishing of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including the General 
Provisions; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or 
similar information or data are or will be required by Contractor for such purposes. 
 

7.3 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the Contract 
Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and assumes 
responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities.  No additional examinations, 
investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in respect of said 
Underground Facilities are or will be required by Contractor in order to perform and furnish the 
Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in accordance with the other terms and 
conditions of the Contract Documents. 

 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 

explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, error or discrepancies that he has 

discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable 
to Contractor. 

 
Article 8. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
The Contract Documents which comprise the entire agreement between Owner and Contractor concerning 
the Work consist of the following: 
 
8.1 This Agreement (pages C-1 to C-5, inclusive). 
 
8.2 Performance, Payment and other Bonds consisting of pages PB-1&2 and LB 1&2, inclusive. 
 



AVCON, INC.  CONTRACT FORM 
   

 

 
C-4 

PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT                                           RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION  
AIRFIELD ELECTRICAL REHABILITATION  CONTRACT 

8.3 General Contract Provisions,  FAA Required Bid and Contract Provisions. 
 
8.4 Technical Specifications as listed in table of contents of the Project Manual. 
 
8.5 Drawings, with each sheet bearing the following general title: AIRFIELD ELECTRICAL 

REHABILITATION.   
 
8.6 Addendum Number 1 to 1. 
 
8.7 Contractor's Bid (pages BS-1  to BS-4, inclusive). 
 
8.8 Documentation submitted by Contractor prior to Notice of Award consisting of: 

              
              

 
There are no Contract Documents other than those listed in this Article 8.  The Contract Documents 
may only be amended, modified or supplemented as provided in Section 40 of the General 
Provisions. 

 
Article 9. Miscellaneous. 
 
9.1 Terms used in this Agreement, which are defined in Section 10 of the General Provisions will have 

the meanings indicated in the General Provisions. 
 
9.2 No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract Documents will be 

binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and 
specifically but without limitation monies that may become due and monies that are due may not 
be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be 
limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an 
assignment no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility 
under the Contract Documents. 

 
9.3 Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives 

to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect of 
all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

 







AVCON, INC.  BID FORM(S) 
 

PB-1 
PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT                           RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION  
AIRFIELD ELECTRICAL REHABILITATION               PERFORMANCE BOND 

PERFORMANCE BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: that  SOUTHEAST SITE SERVICES, LLC , as Principal, 
hereinafter called Contractor, and        , as Surety, 
hereinafter called Surety are held and firmly bound unto WASHINGTON COUNTY, as Obligee, hereinafter 
called Owner, in the amount of ONE MILLION TWENTY FIVE, TWO HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS AND 
ZERO CENTS ($1,025,250.00) for the payment whereof Contractor and Surety bind themselves, their heirs, 
executors, administrators, and successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, Contractor has, by written agreement dated ________________________, entered into a 
contract with Owner for the AIRFIELD ELECTRICAL REHABILITATION project at PLYMOUTH 
MUNICIPAL AIRPORT, in accordance with Drawings and Specifications prepared by AVCON, INC., which 
contract is by reference made a part hereof, and is hereinafter referred to as the Contract. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that if Contractor shall promptly 
and faithfully perform said Contract, then the obligation shall be null and void, otherwise, it shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
The Surety hereby waives notice of any alteration or extension of time made by the Owner. 
 
Whenever Contractor shall be, and declared by Owner to be, in default under the Contract, the Owner 
having performed Owner’s obligations thereunder, the Surety may promptly remedy the default, or shall 
promptly: 
 

(1) Complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions or 
 
(2) Obtain a bid for completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and 

conditions, upon determinations by Surety of the lowest responsible 
bidder, arrange for a contract between such bidder and Owner, and make 
available as work progresses (even though there should be a default or a 
succession of defaults under the contract or contracts of completion 
arranged under this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of 
completion less the balance of the contract price; but not exceeding, 
including other costs and damages for which the Surety may be liable 
hereunder, the amount set forth in the first paragraph hereof.  The term 
“balance of the contract price,” as used in this paragraph shall mean the 
total amount payable by Owner to Contractor under the Contract and any 
amendments thereto, less the amount properly paid by Owner to 
Contractor. 

 
Any suit under this bond must be instituted before the expiration of two (2) years from the date on which 
final payment under the contract falls due.  
 
No right or action shall accrue on this bond to or for the use of any person or corporation other than the 
Owner named herein or the heirs, executors, administrators, or successors of the Owner. 

Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company







AVCON, INC.  BID FORM(S) 
 

LB-1 
PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT                                                                                              RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION  
AIRFIELD ELECTRICAL REHABILITATION  LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND 

LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: that  SOUTHEAST SITE SERVICES, LLC, as Principal, 
hereinafter called Principal, and        , as Surety, hereinafter 
called Surety are held and firmly bound unto WASHINGTON COUNTY as Obligee, hereinafter called 
Owner, for the use and benefit of claimants as hereinbelow defined, in the amount of ONE MILLION 
TWENTY FIVE, TWO HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS AND ZERO CENTS ($1,025,250.00) for the payment 
whereof Principal and Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, and successors and 
assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, Principal has, by written agreement dated      ____, entered a 
contract with Owner for the AIRFIELD ELECTRICAL REHABILITATION project at WASHINGTON 
COUNTY, in accordance with Drawings and Specifications prepared by AVCON, INC., which contract is by 
reference made a part hereof, and is hereinafter referred to as the Contract. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that if Principal shall promptly 
make payments to all claimants as hereinafter defined, for all labor and material used or reasonably 
required for use in the performance of the Contract, then this obligation shall be void, otherwise, it shall 
remain in full force and effect, subject to the following conditions: 
 
(1) A Claimant is defined as one having a direct contract with the Principal or with a Subcontractor of 

the Principal for labor, material, or both, used or reasonably required for use in the performance of 
the Contract, Labor and material being construed to include that part of water and gas, power, light, 
heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service, or rental of equipment directly applicable to the Contract. 

 
(2) The above-named Principal and Surety hereby jointly and severally agree with the Owner that every 

claimant, as herein defined, who has not been paid in full before the expiration of a period of ninety 
(90) days after the date on which the last such claimant’s work or labor was done or performed, or 
materials where furnished by such claimant, may sue on this bond for the use of such claimant, 
prosecute the suit to final judgment for such sum or sums as may be justly die claimant, and have 
execution thereon.  The Owner shall not be liable for the payment of any cost or expenses of any 
such suit. 

 
(3) No suit or action shall be commenced hereunder by any claimant. 
 

a. Unless claimant, other than one having a direct contract with the principal, shall be given 
written notice to any two of the following: the Principal, the Owner, or the Surety above-
named, within ninety (90) days after such claimant did or performed the last of the work or 
labor, or furnish the last of the materials for which said claim is made, stating with 
substantial accuracy the amount claimed and the name of the party to whom the materials 
were furnished, or for whom the work or labor was done or performed.  Such notice shall 
be served by mailing the same by registered mail or certified mail, postage prepaid, in an 
envelope addressed to the Principal, Owner, or Surety, at any place where an office is 
regularly maintained for the transaction of business, or served in any manner in which legal 
process may be served in the state in which the aforesaid project is located, save that such 
service need not be made by a public officer.  

 

Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company







 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:     March 4, 2024 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-5 minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Additionally, this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO: 3 
 
       DATE:     March 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Employee of the Year, Chair Keyes 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
The Board Chair will announce the Employee of the Quarter and present them with a 
certificate.  They will also receive a check for $50.00.  Ms. Kneiper will take their picture 
which will be printed and displayed on the wall in the foyer of the Administration 
Building the following day. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM NO: 4 
 
DATE: March 4, 2024 

ITEM: Public Hearing:  Strategic Plan, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 

 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

 
Mr. Potter will discuss the County’s Strategic Plan.  He has scheduled a public hearing on this 
to hear from the community on it. 
 
See attached. 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA STATEMENT 





























 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:     March 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Albemarle Commission Update, Ms. Sharon Smith, Special Projects 

Administrator 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION:  Ms. Smith will speak to the Board regarding how the 
Albemarle Commission is handling housing grant for Washington County. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:     March 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:       ¼ Cent Sales Tax Referendum Update, Ms. Asia Melton, Fellow 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Melton will give an update on the ¼ Cent Sales Tax Referendum education push. 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:     March 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:       County Broadband Update, Commissioner Tracey A. Johnson 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Commissioner Johnson will give an update on the County’s broadband situation.  A 
profile map is attached. 



Pine Ridge Rd

US Highway 17 N

Ocean Hwy

64

Co oper Hill Rd

W
oodard R

d

S
a

n
s

S
o

uci
R

d

N
C

-45
N

N
C

- 3
2

S
N

C
H

ighw
ay

99
S

US-6
4

W

Jamesville

Merry Hill

Plymouth

Westover

Ren
Roberson Store

Sans Souci

32

45

N
C

-3
2

SHoke

17

Harvey Pt
Defense Testing

Activity

Edenton
Yeopim

32

64

N
C-3

2 N N
C Hwy 94 N

Pettigrew State
Park

Washington

Roper

Woodley

Creswell

Albemarle
Beach

St Johns

Davenport
Forks

Cross Landing

Travis

New Lake

Pungo
Lake

Pocosin Lakes
National Wildlife

Refuge

Union Grove

Pike Road

Pungo

NC Broadband Survey - Unserved Responses

GREAT Award Locations (ARPA Funded) - Contracted

GREAT Award Locations (ARPA Funded) - Contingent

CAB Award Locations (ARPA Funded) - Contingent

GREAT Award Locations (State Funded)

GREAT Award Areas (State Funded)

FCC Rural Digital Opportunity Fund Grant

Other Federal Grants

²

0 5 102.5
Miles

WASHINGTON COUNTY BROADBAND PROFILE

Map Date: 12/4/2023Map Date: 12/4/2023Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, USDA

DATA SOURCES:
*FCC BDC - Federal Communication Commission Broadband Data Collection
Version 3 Published November 2023 (Provider Reported as of June 30, 2023)

**ACS - U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey 2017-2021
5-Year Estimates

44.57%

3 Total Locations0.04%

2,060 Total Locations29.74%

31.57%

24.71%

195 Total Locations

33.45% 2,317 Total Locations

WASHINGTON COUNTY ESTIMATES

(No Service 25mb/s Download and 3mb/s Upload or Greater)
Percent Unserved *

(No Service 100mb/s Download and 20mb/s Upload or Greater)
Percent Underserved *

Percent with Fiber Broadband Available *

Percent with DSL Only *

Percent with Broadband Subscription **

Percent with No Internet Access **

Percent with No Internet Devices **

FCC Reported Unserved Locations

Count of Unserved

Percent Unserved

High

Low

Hig
h

Low

Unserved Locations from the FCC Broadband Data Collection
have been aggregated into hexagon-shaped bins to show both

the count and percent of unserved locations within each bin.
Darker shades of pink indicate higher total counts of unserved locations.

 Darker shades of blue indicate a higher percentage of locations within a bin
are unserved.  Darker shades of purple indicate both a higher total of unserved
locations and a higher percentage of total locations within a bin are unserved.

Unserved locations for American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funded programs
in NC are defined as locations without access to fixed terrestrial internet service,

through Fiber, Cable, or non-mobile Licensed Fixed Wireless
technologies, of at least 25mb/s Download and 3mb/s Upload speeds.

Summary of broadband service in the county based on FCC reported unserved areas compared with current funding programs focusing on improving broadband in the county.

2.82%



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   8 
   
       DATE:     March 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:        EMTOC Building, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Potter will speak to the Board about the EMTOC Building and documents received 
from Oakley Collier Architects.  See attached. 
 
Also, an answer to Chair Keyes question about a generator.  “The approximate cost of the 
whole building generator is $120,000. That would be for a 150kw generator fueled with 
Diesel or natural gas. Natural gas would be the preferred if it is available.” 
 
 



PROJECT BUDGET ESTIMATE

Washington County

Emergency Operation Center/EMS Proj. 23010

1 Development and Construction: Cost per unit

Site Development 2 AC 400,000 $800,000.00
New Construction 12,030 SF $385 $4,631,550.00

Delete Bays 3,100 SF -$275 -$852,500.00
SUBTOTAL $4,579,050.00

2 Land and Rights
TBD

$0.00
SUBTOTAL $0.00

3 Legal Fees    TBD $0.00
SUBTOTAL $0.00

4 Other Costs:
Feasibility Study 1 LS NA
Appraisal 1 LS $2,500.00
Site Survey 1 LS $8,250.00
Geotechnical Testing 1 LS $8,750.00
Permits & Application Fees 1 LS $1,800.00
Bid Advertising 1 LS $1,200.00
Special Inspections 1 LS $45,000.00
SUBTOTAL $67,500.00

5 Design Fees: 9% LS $469,810.53
SUBTOTAL $557,277.00

6 Equipment
Technology Wiring 4% LS $183,162.00
Equipment and Furnishings 10% LS $457,905.00
SUBTOTAL $641,067.00

7 Contingencies
Construction Contingency 1 5% $228,952.50
SUBTOTAL $228,952.50

8 Financing 1 LS TBD
SUBTOTAL $0.00

Total $6,073,846.50

Oakley Collier Architects, PA 2/27/2024

In providing this opinion of probable cost, it must be understood that we have no control over costs or the price of labor, 

equipment or materials, contractors' methods of determining bid prices, competitive bidding, market or negotiating conditions.  

Accordingly, we cannot and do not warrant that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from our opinion.  We make no warranty, 

express, or implied, as to the accuracy of any opinion we may give as compared to bid or actual cost.

February 27, 2024



109 Candlewood Road, Rocky Mount, NC 27804







LEGEND

E911

EMS

EOC

Shared

2579 SF

APPARATUS BAY

69 SF

STOR

69 SF

STOR

69 SF

WORK

84 SF

TLT

84 SF

TLT
132 SF

BUNK

96 SF

LOCKERS

67 SF

MEDS

132 SF

BUNK

536 SF

E911

83 SF

RISER

100 SF

EQUIP /

RADIO

192 SF

911

DIRECTOR

72 SF

TLT

73 SF

TLT

244 SF

EM DIR

198 SF

EM COORD

135 SF

OFFICE

135 SF

OFFICE

276 SF

BREAK ROOM

349 SF

CONF

136 SF

HAM RADIO

48 SF

JAN

49 SF

ELEC

55 SF

TLT

55 SF

TLT

75 SF

STOR

1308 SF

TRAINING / EOC

597 SF

LOBBY

135 SF

VEST

818 SF

LOUNGE / KIT /

EXERCISE

132 SF

BUNK

177 SF

SERVERS

73 SF

STORAGE

67 SF

STOR

73 SF

O2 STOR

70 SF

STOR

37 SF

STOR

36 SF

STOR
69 SF

STOR

WASHINGTON COUNTY TERMINAL/EOC

EOC / E911 =   6,685 SF

EMS STATION =   5,345 SF

BUILDING AREA = 12,030 SF

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

DATE : 02-16-2024

CONCEPTUAL FLOOR PLAN



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  9 
 
       DATE:     March 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:        EM Grant, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION:  Mr. Potter will discuss the EM Grant attached in their 
package. 
 
The Board is being asked to approve EM’s request to apply for the grant funding to 
purchase the boat and improve the rescue equipment trailer as shown in the summary. 
 
 
 























 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  10 
 
       DATE:     March 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
ABC BOARD: 
 
*Note: The following was discussed at the February 5, 2024 Board Meeting and it was 
tabled, so it is being brought back again. 
 
Mr. Jack Faulk’s term expired December 31, 2023.  He is the Chairman of the ABC 
Board.  He has done a fine job as the Board's leader and they would like to see him 
continue to serve. 
 
Mr. Faulk has said he would like to continue to serve if re-appointed. 
 
The Clerk was also asked by the Washington County ABC Board to bring the following 
request to the Commissioners.  They are asking to make a few changes to the terms on 
their board so they would have more staggered terms.   
 
 They proposed to change Tim Spear’s term from June 2025 to December 2025. 
 
 They proposed to change the re-appointment of Jack Faulk to a one-time, 4-year 
term, to expire, December 2027. 
 
PLANNING BOARD 
 
The Planning Board has two seats expiring March 31, 2024 which are the 
Creswell seat held by Thomas Patrick, and the Scuppernong seat 
held by Marty Swett. Both gentlemen have agreed to remain on the Board 
for an additional three-year term to end on March 31, 2027.  
 



By a motion, duly seconded, and approved unanimously, the Washington 
County Planning Board wishes to recommend that the Washington County  
Commissioners re-appoint Thomas Patrick to the Creswell Municipal seat 
and Marty Swett to the Scuppernong township seat with the Planning  
Board, each to serve a three-year term ending March 31, 2027. 
 
This request for appointments is in compliance with the Rules of Procedure for the 
Washington County Planning Board, Article II, Board Members; and the Washington 
County Zoning Ordinance,  Article 9:  Administration and Adjustment; Section C: 
Membership of the Planning Board, and Section D:  Planning Board Terms of Service. 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  11 
 
       DATE:  March 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer, will discuss the enclosed budget transfers and budget 
amendments for Board’s approval/disapproval and information. (See attached.) 
 
 
 































































Washington County 

Monthly Financial Summary 

as of February 28, 2024 

Budget YTD Activity 

General Fund (10): 
Revenues 18,425,255.00 11,387,077.55 
Expenditures (18,425,255.00) (10,980,955.58) 

Balance: - 406,121.97

*Fund Balance Appropriation 1,953,322.00 

*Transfer from General Fund

Capital Outlay-Washington Co Schools (21): 
Revenues 67,648,068.42 29,733,515.47 
Expenditures (67,648,068.42) (27,213,897.79) 

Balance: - 2,519,617.68

*Fund Balance Appropriation 18,937,520.71 

*Transfer from General Fund

Drainage Fund (30): 
Revenues 123,000.00 85,835.25 

Expenditures (123,000.00) (40,237.99) 
Balance: - 45,597.26

*Fund Balance Appropriation 22,828.00 

*Transfer from General Fund

Sanitation Fund (33): 
Revenues 1,663,189.00 1,307,996.19 
Expenditures (1,663,189.00) (947,812.59) 

Balance: - 360,183.60

*Fund Balance Appropriation 64,916.00 

*Transfer from General Fund 50,000.00 

Water Fund (35): 
Revenues 8,722,518.00 893,744.08 
Expenditures (8,722,518.00) (988,186.94) 

Balance: - (94,442.86)

*Fund Balance Appropriation 394,228.00 

*Transfer from General Fund

Budget YTD Activit}'_ 

EMS Fund (37): 
Revenues 2,404,242.00 1,494,904.65 
Expenditures (2,404,242.00) (1,308,390.29) 

Balance: - 186,514.36
*Fund Balance Appropriation 169,215.00 

*Transfer from General Fund 398,952.00 

Airport TaxiLane Grant Fund (38): 
Revenues 666,471.00 26,991.00 
Expenditures (666,471.00) (26,990.32) 

Balance: - 0.68 
*Fund Balance Appropriation 16,667.00 
*Transfer from General Fund

Airport Fund (39): 
Revenues 265,693.00 167,490.51 

Expenditures (265,693.00) (132,196.32) 
Balance: - 35,294.19

*Fund Balance Appropriation 49,955.00 

*Transfer from General Fund 99, 7 38. 00 

WC Hospital Pension Fund { 40): 
Revenues 450,000.00 522,238.81 

Expenditures (450,000.00) (318,071.00) 
Balance: - 204,167.81

*Fund Balance Appropriation

*Transfer from General Fund

Opioid Settlement Distribution Fund (50): 

450,000.00 

Revenues 93,712.64 147,754.04 
Expenditures (93,712.64) (26,230.19) 

Balance: - 121,523.85

* Fund Balance Appropriation

*Transfer from General Fund





































































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   12 
 
       DATE:     March 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 BreezyBanks information from the Planning Board 

 
Please see the information attached regarding a subdivision approval from the 
Planning Board.   
 
Per the Washington County Zoning Ordinance, on January 30, 2024 the 
Planning Director, Planning Staff,  Owner/developer, surveyor, and the NC DOT regional 
engineer met and reviewed the preliminary plat for a previously approved subdivision which 
needed a new application and review due to movement of a roadway.  He determined the 
plat was in accordance with the Subdivision Ordinance.  An application, payment of 
appropriate fee, and the final plat was presented to the Planning Coordinator on February 8, 
2024 who reviewed it, and placed on the next Agenda of the Planning Board, which was 
February 15, 2024. 
 
At their meeting on February 15, the Planning Board reviewed the plat, the information 
provided by the surveyor, and the Planning Director.  The Planning Director stated this 
subdivision meets the intent of the Land Use Plan.  After some discussion regarding the 
history of the project, the DOT review for road to remain private, infrastructure (already in 
place), Charles Weathersbee offered a motion to approve the plat and authorize Mary 
Barnes, as Chair of the Planning Board, to sign the plat for recording, per Section 3.3c, of 
the Subdivision Ordinance.  Greg Snyder seconded the motion, which was approved by 
unanimous vote of members present.   
 
The Washington County Planning Board must share, for informational purposes, 
their decision with the Board of Commissioners in case of appeal.  

 
 
 Department Head Reports from February 2024 (see attached) 
 Statistic Reports (see attached) 



From: Connie Barnes
To: Julie Bennett
Cc: Allen Pittman; Mary Barnes
Subject: Approval - FYI - Breezy Banks Subdivision
Date: Friday, February 16, 2024 3:19:37 PM
Attachments: BreezyBanks Estates subdivision.pdf

 
Please see the information attached regarding a subdivision approval from the
Planning Board. 
 
Per the Washington County Zoning Ordinance, on January 30, 2024 the
Planning Director, Planning Staff,  Owner/developer, surveyor, and the NC DOT regional engineer
met and reviewed the preliminary plat for a previously approved subdivision which
needed a new application and review due to movement of a roadway.  He determined
the plat was in accordance with the Subdivision Ordinance.  An application,
payment of appropriate fee, and the final plat was presented to the
Planning Coordinator on February 8, 2024 who reviewed it, and placed on the next
Agenda of the Planning Board, which was February 15, 2024.
 
At their meeting on February 15, the Planning Board reviewed the plat, the information
provided by the surveyor, and the Planning Director.  The Planning Director stated this
subdivision meets the intent of the Land Use Plan.  After some discussion regarding
the history of the project, the DOT review for road to remain private, infrastructure (already
in place), Charles Weathersbee offered a motion to approve the plat and authorize Mary
Barnes, as Chair of the Planning Board, to sign the plat for recording, per Section 3.3c, of the
Subdivision Ordinance.  Greg Snyder seconded the motion, which was approved by unanimous
vote of members present. 
 
The Washington County Planning Board must share, for informational purposes,
their decision with the Board of Commissioners in case of appeal.
 

Connie Barnes
Administrative Assistant
Washington County
Emergency Management
Inspections, Permits, Planning
116 Adams Street
Plymouth NC 27962
 
252-793-4114
cbarnes@washconc.org
 

mailto:cbarnes@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org
mailto:PlanningDirector@washconc.org
mailto:mbarnes.rfr@gmail.com
mailto:cbarnes@washconc.org



















































 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
March 4, 2024 

Board of Commissioners’ Meeting 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
No report submitted. 
 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
All is well at Recreation . We will be playing in the EAC or SWAC tournament on March 9-10, 
2024.  Games will be played in Greene County and Washington, NC.  We will be sending 3 
teams this year if all goes well. 

 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
Early voting has begun but very few voters have voted. It will end on Saturday, March 2, at 
3:00 PM. Election Day is Tuesday, March 5th. The county canvass will be March 15th. 
 
 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
 

No report submitted. 

 

Cooperative Extension 

Rebecca Liverman 
  



 

 



 

 
 
 
 



 

Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 
(SW is out of the office on a family emergency and will double up on report next month.) 

 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 
 Permits issued    39  
 Inspections Completed 29  

This number does NOT include daily review of third-party reports from  
TerraCon for Washington County School PK-12 Project or ECS Solutions, Inc for Royal 
Farms project  

 Flood Reviews 3  
 Map/Plat reviews 2 – not subject to subdivision  
 Continue to work on budget package  
 --Meeting with Flood Resiliency study group (CAT)  
 --Followed up with Fire Watch at Washington Regional Medical Center  
 --Discuss Fire alarm and evacuation procedure with Creswell Elementary School      

principal and Superintendent White after call to school  
 --Consult with client about bona-fide agriculture use of building  
 --Consult with Engineer @ Wash Co School project scheduled – no show  
 --Review plans for tiny home construction on Alligood Road  
 --Consult with owner for Mobile Home permit requirements at Lake Phelps  
 --Map Review for Attorney  
 --Reviewed application and final plat for Breezy Banks Estates for Planning Board  
 review and approval at February meeting – existing infrastructure; formerly approved 

subdivision; moved road so needed a new application – Planning Board approved.  
 --Consulted with Dennis Brown from the Town of Plymouth – plan and application for 

Dollar General Store on Hwy 64 West beside Pizza Hut – per Mr. Brown, zoning was 
incorrectly referenced; need property divided and recorded so 9-1-1 address and PIN can 
be assigned 

 
  
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
(Jan & Feb) 
 

• Jan. 5th- NEOGOV Training,County College 
• Jan.8th -Weather Brfg 
• Jan. 9th -Brfg,Weather 
• Jan.10th -Damage Assessment /Strong Coldfront 
• Jan. 16th. -Department Budget Discussion, Comm.Rm 
• Jan.17th. -Mtg.Health Dept. Reps/OnTarget 
• Jan.23rd – Mtg. w/EMS/911/CM on EMTOC bldg. 



 

• Jan.24th – NEOGOV work 
• Jan. 26th – Grant/Salesforce Trng 
• Feb. 5th -Helipad mtg. 
• Feb.6th- Bearfest Mtg. 
• Feb.7th -DHM/Mtg. w/BCEM 
• Feb.9th. -D-7/D-13 NCFS Cooperators mtg /Comm.Struct.Fire W.Water St. 
• Feb 12th- CAT Team Meeting 
• Feb.13th Employee Safety Comm.Mtg 
• Feb14th – Budget 
• Feb 16th -Carolina Yachts 
• Feb.18th Fire in storage cont. @ Pines Building site 
• Feb. 19th -Grant/Salesforce Trng 
• Feb. 21st – Meetings/Fire on RR tracks-Airport Rd. 
• Feb. 26th – Fire Chiefs Meeting 
• Feb. 27th – Quotes/Budget request finalizing 

 
• EM has been working on Budget for FY25/FY24 Grant training and quotes/FY 23 CBCG 

Reimbursement/SAR Training for March and April(4 trng dates) for all SAR 
responders/Radio Programming schedule for Feb. 28th/Meetings-minutes and content for 
Employee Safety Committee and Fire Chiefs and Public Safety Team/Coordinating with 
all Responding Depts. For SAR/Grant and other response needs/Various others such as 
RCCP/CAT Team 

 
Soil and Water 
Chris Respass 
 
(Jan & Feb) 
 

1. Completed Pre-Surveys for multiple cost share contracts. 
2. Met with multiple personnel about drainage infrastructure around the county. 
3. Filed Coll91/LGC203 Reports for tax purposes for the district. 
4. Attended the department head meeting that kicks off budget season for the county 

departments. 
5. Replaced the fuel pump and injector on four-wheeler used for surveying. 
6. Attended the Annual Drainage Meeting and presented. 
7. Created a power-point for drainage plan 2024-2034. 
8. Attended a RCCP meeting with the county. 
9. Hosted the County Safety Committee meeting in the conference room of the FSA 

building. 
10. Attended a budget 101 meeting with the county to ask questions about the budget 

form. 
11. Attended a SWOT analysis meeting with the county department heads. 
12. Met with Tyrell County representatives to fill out survey for Scuppernong 

Steering Committee. 



 

13. Paid contractors for completion of Old Mill Creek. 
14. Finished multiple post surveys. 
15. Received JAA signatures of multiple cost share contracts. 

 
 
Landfill 
Mike Gray 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 
 Detention: 

 
 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
   
 

Summary VoIP Installation: Cutover to new VoIP phone system took place February 20 at 
6:30pm. Work with VC3 February 20-21. I am currently working to verify Auto Attendant 
was set up correctly for each department and to resolve any issues. Submitted TO5 to NCDIT 
to disconnect and remove from billing all ported phone lines.  

 
1. Discuss with Lumen contract pricing and Fiber connection. 
2. Walk Ricky through cable run for Jail to 2nd floor. 
3. Discuss with Dora issue with VoIP installation during election period & review with Mary. 
4. Pull dtawes pst file & search for emails for Curtis. 
5. Troubleshoot issue with SVR01 & Elite. Delete files & reinstall from backup. 
6. Review with Martin updated Motorola quotes for 911 Grant. 
7. Discuss 911 Grant with Anna & assist with submitting January report to 911 Board. 
8. Review VoIP documentation, verify amount due & review with Missy. Submit additional  

Change Order. 
9. Work on making patch cables for VoIP phones. Work with VC3 to on additional  

information needed. Keep spreadsheet update. 
10. Discuss with Missy 365 authentication on wwestbrook account. 
11. Add/Delete employees on 911 digital door lock. 
12. Review EMAG documentation with Anna. Work with Southern Software on text to CAD  

issue. 
13. Troubleshoot issue with Michele’s phone – Not In Service. 



 

14. Put together FY24-25 Budget Book. Reconcile FY23-24 Budget purchases. 
15. Create shared folder for Missy & Tina. 
16. Troubleshoot issue with SVR01 links – assign to SSG. 
17. Request Dell Quote for Senior Center & receive – forward to Renee. 
18. Review timeline with Motorola for 911 Grant & review with Anna. 
19. Get log in credentials to GeoComm for Sherri. 
20. Issue with map address in 911. Maps have not been updated. Discuss with Sherri & contact 

Atlas. Atlas is supposed to contact Southern Software to determine what needs to be done. 
21. Discuss with Lance backup communications with fire departments when antenna is being  

replaced. 
22. Troubleshoot issue with cable in Jail & Investigators office. Contact Mediacom – modems 

replaced. 
23. FY25 Budget: Email vendors for updated pricing on contracts. Contact departments to  

verify Specialty Underwriters equipment. 
24. Request Dell Quote for Tax Office & receive – forward to Sherri. 
25. Assist Mediacom with route to run cable from Clerk of Court to Hwy Patrol office. 
26. Mike Gray cannot access Property Tax Records – Troubleshoot & assign to SSG. 
27. Troubleshoot scanning issue with Laurie’s computer. 
28. Troubleshoot issue with selecting cells in Excel for Tax Office. 
29. Attend Budget meeting 02/22/24. 
30. Attend Commissioners meeting. 
31. Attend Departmental meeting. 
32. Attend County Manager group meeting. 
33. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
34. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
35. Complete Weekly Activity Report for County Manager 
36. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

 
 
Senior Center 
Renee’ Collier 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
                          

1. Held a pre-bid meeting Jan 30 on updating airfield lighting, beacon, papi’s, and reil’s 
with AVCON and NCDOA. 

2. Bid openings (5 bids)  held on Feb.15th with low bid of $1,025,250.00 by Southeast Site 
Services and high bid by Baynor Construction of $4,977,911.77 on project. 

3. Maintenance has completed on conversion of kitchen area to a pilot’s lounge. County 
maintenance did a nice job. Pilot’s lounge is now available for use. 

4. Continue working on ditch banks as time allows with pole saw to remove larger growth. 
5. Filling in runway/taxiway washouts from rainfalls, more this last rainfall! 
6. Testing water outlets each day for water quality. 



 

7. Repairing drainage problem areas. 
 

8. Future Projects:   
 Clean debris around perimeter of airport.                                                   
 Clean logging road overgrowth.                                                                                                                                               
 Replace fuel pump night light at fueling station, about 20’ tall.                                                          
 Runway: airport. Will have to remove trees north end and south end of runway 

3/21 RPZ zone to meet FAA safety standards.                        
 Remove rocks/stones around taxiway to improve mowing and save wear and tear 

on airport/county equipment.                                                              
 And other items that are deemed necessary not on this list.                                

 
                            

Surplus Activity 
Debbie Knieper 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Facility Services 
Ricky Young 
 
Unfinished Business: 

• 90% finished with painting at DSS. 
• Continue landscaping around County buildings. 

Maintenance: 

• Completed 59 work orders. 



 

• Completed the renovations at the Airport. 
• Completed running cables for the VoIP project. 
• Completed the minor repairs on the Courtroom roof. 

Upcoming Projects: 

• Mowing season has started. 
• Replacing outside lighting on County buildings. 
• Continue with the PM’s and work orders. 

 
DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 
 



 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

WC Dispatched 164 158 141 150 142 169 133 1057

WC Transported 109 124 113 113 104 112 106 781

WC Refusals 55 34 28 37 38 57 27 276

Transport Washington

Hospital to Hospitals 0 1 3 1 1 0 1 7

SNF to Doctors 112 146 137 132 113 111 153 904

Hospital Discharges 7 8 8 8 8 10 9 58

EMS Back Up 0 5 3 5 5 2 5 25

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

TC Dispatched 49 51 63 50 74 55 68 410
TC Transported 31 41 54 38 55 39 51 309
TC Refusals 18 10 9 12 19 16 17 101

Mutual Aid Hyde

HC Dispatched 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HC Transported 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HC Refusals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)

FY23-24

Washington County

Tyrrell County

36%

27%

9%

14%

11%
3%0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY23-24
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Limbs, Brush & Leaves 44.54 44.29 89.90 79.91 47.12 61.53 80.70 447.99

Inert Debris 41.06 31.47 1.99 28.62 4.39 22.25 0 129.78

Scrap Metal 1.06 2.13 1.24 1.02 0.81 1.12 1.59 8.97

C&D 96.28 84.36 29.31 43.11 26.52 25.01 54.47 359.06

Tires 12 4.59 1.79 6.87 2.8 5.76 5.55 39.36

LANDFILL  (in tons)

FY 23-24

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Landfill Collections in Tons 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $3,495.00 3,800.46$      3,663.00$   6,607.00$   1,220.00$   2,891.00$   2,111.00$   2,812.50$   $26,599.96

Zoning 150.00$    75.00$         275.00$       50.00$         225.00$       25.00$         75.00$         300.00$       $1,175.00

Reinspect 300.00$    75.00$         150.00$       725.00$       275.00$       -$             150.00$       550.00$       $2,225.00

SWUF $0.00 -$             406.25$       62.50$         -$             -$             656.25$       $1,125.00
HO Recovery 

Fee $0.00 20.00$         10.00$         -$             -$             -$             $30.00

Total $3,945.00 $3,970.46 $4,504.25 $7,444.50 $1,720.00 $2,916.00 $2,336.00 $4,318.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,154.96

PLANNING AND ZONING

FY23-24

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

$3,000.00

$4,000.00

$5,000.00

$6,000.00

$7,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY23 -24) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

85%

4%

7%
4%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning

Reinspect SWUF

HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                      

Current Year Tax 1,292,918.24$    1,841,875.98$    327,668.62$      319,355.85$    260,168.47$    1,568,567.71$     826,014.32$      6,436,569.19$                     

Current Yr Discount (25,476.78)$        (21,654.99)$        (526.19)$            4.54$               2.59$               -$                     -$                    (47,650.83)$                         

Current Year Penalty 787.65$               2,771.65$            1,056.76$           202.13$           200.81$           3,519.82$            1,665.58$           10,204.40$                          

Current Year Interest -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 2.59$                   3,635.25$           3,637.84$                            

Watershed Tax Current Yr 15,097.27$          21,172.24$         3,795.04$           3,706.23$        3,018.07$        18,412.19$          9,821.04$           75,022.08$                          

Watershed Discount (302.62)$              (250.79)$             (5.81)$                 -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                    (559.22)$                              

Watershed Penalty 9.16$                   31.98$                 12.61$                1.77$               2.13$               41.86$                 11.63$                111.14$                                

Watershed Interest -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                     41.34$                41.34$                                  

Prior Year Tax 18,352.43$          36,799.48$         14,030.87$        11,746.94$      13,152.62$      30,868.77$          38,677.46$        163,628.57$                        

Prior Year Penalty 68.78$                 417.40$               11.30$                11.32$             8.98$               56.62$                 128.45$              702.85$                                

Prior Year Interest 2,722.59$            9,883.52$            1,948.27$           1,603.26$        2,701.76$        7,245.98$            7,520.79$           33,626.17$                          

Prior Year Watershed 149.83$               462.06$               82.27$                107.42$           120.87$           178.34$               610.30$              1,711.09$                            

Prior Year WS Penalty 0.71$                   4.84$                   0.13$                  0.36$               0.24$               0.67$                   1.18$                  8.13$                                    

Prior Year WS Interest 170.91$               532.50$               138.46$              148.78$           136.30$           255.79$               333.98$              1,716.72$                            

Bad Checks -$                     -$                     -$                    (173.27)$          -$                 -$                     -$                    (173.27)$                              

Prepayments 500.95$               5,956.02$            2,762.60$           2,006.00$        2,759.13$        2,763.67$            8,484.73$           25,233.10$                          

TOTAL 1,304,999.12$    1,898,001.89$    350,974.93$      338,721.33$   282,271.97$   1,631,914.01$     896,946.05$      -$                -$                -$                -$               -$  6,703,829.30$                     

Initiated 0

Amount -$                                      

Satisfied/Cancelled 0

Amount -$                                      

*

87966.77 85,307.73$         77,214.79$        74,163.68$      66,628.89$      74,298.54$          83,382.60 460,996.23$                        

 -$                                      

Billed Current Yr 1,315,210.00$    1,315,210.00$                     

Collected All Years 273,626.13$        265,537.20$       72,876.02$        61,864.46$      60,475.94$      174,442.14$        119,465.51$      1,028,287.40$                     

Bad Checks -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                    -$                                      

TOTAL 273,626.13$        265,537.20$       72,876.02$        61,864.46$      60,475.94$      174,442.14$        119,465.51$      -$                -$                -$                -$               -$  1,028,287.40$                     

Billed Current Yr 6,583.70$            -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$               -$                                      

Collected Current Yr 1,055.97$            1,825.37$            170.37$              618.59$           145.76$           1,604.27$            1,033.69$           -$                -$                -$                -$               6,454.02$                            

TOTAL 1,055.97$            1,825.37$            170.37$              618.59$           145.76$           1,604.27$            1,033.69$           -$                -$                -$                -$               6,454.02$                            

Collected Current Yr 13,576.76$          27,943.80$         16,688.19$        21,036.21$      29,251.70$      26,519.82$          47,338.15$        182,354.63$                        

Creswell Levy 7,708.14$            19,091.33$         3,106.76$           1,908.22$        3,863.21$        41,771.70$          22,576.08$        100,025.44$                        

1,600,966.12$    2,297,707.32$    521,031.06$      498,312.49$   442,637.47$   1,950,550.48$     1,170,742.08$   -$                -$                -$                -$               -$  8,481,947.02$                     

Tax and Tag Collections

Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX

FY23-24

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Eddie Smith Drainage

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax Fees

Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments TOTAL



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total

PARTICIPANT DATA 4679

Unduplicated Attendees 69 79 75 83 71 65 80 522

New Particpants 0 5 1 5 5 11 27

Center-Sponsored Events 367 213 292 157 295 218 338 1880

Special Events 99 63 112 147 142 145 127 835

Caregiver's Support Groups 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 5

Exercise Room 36 40 25 38 26 24 40 229

Fitness Workout 13 15 5 6 6 5 5 55

Yoga 3 3 1 1 3 2 3 16

Chair Exercise 65 64 56 67 51 14 35 352

Line Dance 45 49 42 38 28 11 35 248

Crafts With Sandra Lee 15 20 13 16 14 12 15 105

Drop-in Activities 10 35 36 27 27 29 38 202

Pickle Ball 24 10 2 3 2 17 17 75

Sewing with Geraldine 19 17 21 17 11 18 6 109

Computer Wi-fi 5 11 0 0 1 0 2 19

YTD Total

MEAL DATA 761 865 811 962 777 620 749 0 0 0 0 0 5545

Congregate Meals Served 162 190 165 195 152 139 142 1145

Home-Delivered Meals Served 599 675 646 767 625 481 607 4400

Congregate Meals-Pick-Ups 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

YTD Total

CONTRIBUTION DATA 344.00$  232.00$  437.74$   604.62$  378.31$  464.52$ 499.00$  -$         -$  -$  -$  -$  2,960.19$  

Congregate Meals 46.00$    52.00$    69.00$     44.62$    53.31$    -$        44.00$    308.93$      

Home-Delivered Meals 140.00$  90.00$    262.00$   450.00$  220.00$  380.00$ 365.00$  1,907.00$  

Activity Fees 155.00$  90.00$    105.00$   110.00$  105.00$  75.00$   60.00$    700.00$      

Donations 3.00$      -$         1.74$        9.52$      30.00$    44.26$        

SENIOR CENTER

FY23-24

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Meals Served (FY23-24)

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

45%

20%

0%

6%

1%0%

9%

6%

3%
5%

2%3%0%

Senior Center Activities (FY23-24) Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Groups

Exercise Room

Fitness Workout

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Line Dance

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Drop-in Activities

Pickle Ball

Sewing with Geraldine

Computer Wi-fi



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
Total (by 

Gender)

Total 

Incacerations

55 45 53 51 36 48 42 40 0 0 0 0 370 370
Male 29 26 33 30 21 29 25 26 219

Female 11 5 9 5 2 6 8 7 53

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 7

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

13 13 10 15 12 12 8 7 90 90

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY23-24

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

272

0

1

0

0

0

7

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

SMCP

97%

0%0%0%0%0%3%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY23-24)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 1045 973 880 993 852 896 882 0 0 0 0 0 6521
Law Enforcement 786 765 697 817 701 678 693 5137

Animal Control 78 39 25 10 0 16 42 210

EMS 181 169 158 166 151 202 147 1174

Reported Incidents 28 28

Total Arrests 5 0 2 5 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 16

Misdemeanor Arrests 2 1 2 0 3 8

Felony Arrests 3 1 3 0 1 8

Total Papers Served 40 0 50 59 37 36 0 0 0 0 0 0 222
Criminal Papers Served 7 15 6 0 7 35

Civil Papers Served 33 35 53 37 29 187

Total Papers Outstanding 31 0 46 12 21 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 127
Criminal Papers Outstanding 16 32 6 6 2 62

Civil Papers Outstanding 15 14 6 15 15 65

Gun Permits Issued  N/A 0

Conceals Pending  N/A 7 7

Concealed Permits Issued  N/A 16 10 12 38

SHERRIFF

FY23-24

79%

3%

18%

Dispatched Calls (FY23-24)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

YTD TOTALS

28

8 8

35

187

62 65

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY23 -2)

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

Water Billed FY 22-23  (in 

million gallons)
7.707 7.855 8 6.766 7.766 7.706 6.657 6.814 7.014 6.519 7.56 8.956 90

Water Billed  FY 23-24 (in 

million gallons)
8.08 8.93 7.196 6.896 7.547 6.94 46

Base Charges 70,623$      71,143$      71,210$      71,106$    71,262$   71,106$    426,450$        

Consumption Charges 52,884$      62,621$      43,524$      40,859$    47,242$   40,300$    287,430$        

Reconnecton Charges 1,645$         1,505$        1,575$        1,505$      1,435$      1,575$      9,240$            

 Number of Abatements 13 16 7 20 15 13 84                    

  Dollar Amount of 

Abatements 
1,161.50$   1,268$        1,814$        2,249$      3,036$      956$         10,483.00$    

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

19.9 16.22 15.6 15.7 15 15 15 112.810

Number of Customers 2660 2680 2677 2673 2679 2673 16,042

New taps 5 3 3 3 4 0 18

Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$    4,844.65$    4,844.65$    4,844.65$  $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $4,844.65 33,912.55$            

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE

FY23-24

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 22-23  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 23-24 (in million gallons)



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 398 357 349 397 406 409 332 0 0 0 0 0 2648
Plymouth Police Department 316 287 275 329 340 324 277 2148

Public Works 9 12 13 4 9 13 0 60
EMS Calls in the Town of Plymouth 73 58 61 64 57 72 55 440

Plymouth Fire Department 17 18 26 20 19 24 18

SHERRIFF

FY23-24



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   13 
   
       DATE:     March 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

A Closed Session has been scheduled pursuant to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  
(attorney-client privilege, and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 

 



DRAFT 

 

January 22, 2024 

 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a recessed meeting on Monday, 
January 22, 2024, at 8:00 AM in the Commissioner’s Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  
Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius 
Walker, Jr. were present.  Also, present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, 
Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett, Finance Officer Missy Dixon, and Assistant County Manager 
Jason Squires. 

 Chair Keyes called the recessed meeting to order. This portion of the Budget Workshop 
will consist of presentations/discussions from Department Heads. 

Departmental Presentations: 

Finance Office, Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer 

Ms. Dixon gave the Commissioner’s an overview of the basics of what the Finance 
Department does. She is also the Finance Officer of the TTA and JCPC. 

The things that she is asking for are as follows: 

 Would like the Finance Department offices painted  
 Would like to have new furniture 
 Would like to have a part-time HR employee. Ms. Moore needs help.  She does all 

payroll & benefits. Ms. Dixon is usually the one who helps her.  She does not 
think full-time person is needed. Commissioner Phelps asked how many hours 
would be needed.  Ms. Dixon said she would like to tie down the numbers better 
for time and salary.  Mr. Potter said they may need them 2 days a week to help 
with recruitment announcements, position descriptions, setting up interviews.   
Mr. Squires, ACM, asked would it be possible to contract out such a position.  Mr. 
Potter said maybe for the repetitive tasks but not our convoluted payroll over the 
different departments. Commissioner Phelps asked if any of the furniture would 
be usable.  Ms. Dixon said some of it may be re-used.  Mr.  Potter said if a 
department gets new furniture, then they usually offer it up to other departments 
or surplus it. 

The Commissioners said they appreciate all that Ms. Dixon and her staff do. 

 

Senior Center, Ms. Renee’ Collier, Senior Center Director 

Ms. Collier said when she started as Senior Center Director, her goal was to clean 
everything up.   



DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT 

 

 

 

Ms. Collier said there may be some changes needed in the Sr. Center fee schedule for 
new programs. She also noted the following items that were in her presentation: 

 Increase supply budget---has the plotter and now prints for any departments. Chair Keyes 
asked about printing for the public. Mr. Potter said that would need more discussion. 

 May need a new van…now using one given to them from DSS 
 Need new computers…still running on Windows 7 
 Will be needing to increase training budget 

Chair Keyes said she appreciates all that she does for the Senior Center, especially the new 
classes and a caregiver support person is definitely needed. 

Commissioner Spruill said he appreciated Ms. Collier’s presentation. 

Commissioner Walker said he has been to the Sr. Center, and it is well organized. 

Commissioner Phelps said he knows when he calls the Sr. Center, he can find out what he 
needs. 

Commissioner Johnson said she will come out to the Sr. Center when she retires! 

Chair Keyes asked Ms. Collier would she be interested in speaking to the area churches. Ms. 
Collie said yes. Chair Keyes said she would make herself available. 

 

 



DRAFT 

 

Recreation, Mr. Randy Fulford, Director 

Mr. Fulford said he was not here to ask for anything. He brought the new bus here for 
them to see.  It is a 2024! He thanked the Commissioners for their support.  Mr. Fulford said he 
will be glad when the new school is built and the County will be pulling in the High School 
athletic fields which will allow the County to host more tournaments. 

The Board and staff toured the new bus.  Very nice!! 

Back in discussion, Mr. Potter asked how the condition of the Roper Gym was.  Mr. 
Fulford said he has not been to it in about 5 years.  Mr. Potter said he will ask the new WCS 
Supt. to take a peek. Mr. Potter asked about the handicapped park here in Plymouth.  Mr. Fulford 
said some items need repair.  Mr. Potter asked Mr. Squires to follow up on this.  Chair Keyes 
asked about the Skinnersville fields.  Mr. Fulford said they are holding up fairly well. 

While waiting for the Tax Department to arrive, Mr. Potter  went over the Strategic Plan: 
Safe Healthy  Communities Primary Goals/Objectives & Key 2024 Strategic Actions. [This 
document is incorporated herein by reference and will be made a part of these minutes.] 

 

Tax Office, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 

Ms. Wilkins stated there are two new employees in the Tax Office who started in 
December 2023.  They are getting some training.  Ms. Wilkins said she hopes that the new 
software talks to Finance and goes live in September. Ms. Darlene Fikes, IT Director, is moving 
downstairs and making room for the new employees.  

Mr. Potter said he reached out to the NCACC for their team to come back and finish their 
evaluation of the Tax Office.  They will hopefully be here in the spring.  

Chair Keyes asked about Albemarle Solar project discovery.  Ms. Wilkins said she would 
be talking to them today and sending them some information they had requested. Discussion 
ensued regarding the farmland that solar farms are on. 

 

Soil & Water, Mr. Chris Respess, Technician 

Mr. Respess presented the following information. 

 



DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT 

 

 

Mr. Respess explained most of the grants he receives are “Reimbursement Grants.”  The 
County pays up front and then we are reimbursed 

Mr. Respess said he would like to create a full-time administrative support position. He is 
usually not in the office and needs help with the cost share program.  This new position would 
not require fieldwork. 

He discussed a rollover budget for debris management. There are many places that DOT 
does not take care of and the County could if he had the equipment. Grants will buy equipment. 
This budget will be for maintenance of this equipment. Mr. Respass said he wants the Board to 
think about this for the future--not this year’s budget. 

Mr. Potter asked Mr. Respess to talk about the need for converting the current part-time 
position to a full-time position.  Mr. Respess said he currently budgeted $13,000 for a part-time 
person but have had problems hiring someone.  He is out in the field most of the time and needs 
someone in the office while he is out.  

Discussion ensued regarding wells.  

Mr. Respess also discussed beaver dams. 

Commissioner Walker made a motion to recess to 1:00 PM.  Commissioner Spruill 
seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

Chair Keyes reconvened the budget workshop @ 1:00 PM. 

Mr. Ed Goodwin, Representative, stopped by to see the Commissioners.  He said he was 
on the road today visiting counties that he represents. He spoke about various things that went on 
in the last session. 



DRAFT 

 

 

Facilities, Mr. Ricky Young, Supervisor 

Mr. Young said he has had some pretty big projects--some a year long,  He hopes to be 
done with the remodeling at the Airport this week.  He would like to see Housekeeping doing all 
departments. The County needs a Courtroom roof. He found 27 holes in the roof where areas 
have just been patched over 3 years ago.   Mr. Potter asked about the Courthouse elevator.  Me 
Young said it has been doing well for the last 3 months since the last repairs.  Mr. Potter asked 
more about the Courtroom roof leaks. Mr. Potter said the roof needs to be looked at. Mr. Potter 
asked Housekeeping has to do all departments, is additional staff needed.  Mr. Young said no, he 
thinks his girls could handle it. 

Commissioner Spruill asked how old the roof on the courthouse is. Mr. Young said he had 
no idea.  Some holes he has found looks like termite holes. 

Chair Keyes said to Mr. Young that the Board has heard a lot of positive things about his 
work. 

Commissioner Phelps asked about putting a metal building on the Creswell EMS lot with 
a roll-up door to be able to drive in so the ambulance would be covered in frost/snow/bad 
weather.  Mr. Potter said their might not be enough room on the lot but will check.  

 

DSS, Clifton Hardison, Director & Lynn Swett, Deputy Director 

Ms. Swett mentioned that they are meeting with the DSS Board at the end of this month. 

Highlights:  

Server  maintenance and security runs out in May 2024. Quote from Dell on one model 
down, $9,300 and add software needed and it will be about $10,000.  It is 50% reimbursable. 

Travel/Training:  will have an increase in this based on changes coming into the agency. 

Would like to purchase a new vehicle for $28,000. Could be reimbursed at 50%. 

Increase on MOU line:  a lot of citizens have had needs this year 

Medicaid expansion staff is adequate but may need to convert another position into one 
for Medicaid expansion. 

Hyde Co DSS Director is talking about a facility in Engelhard.  They want to lease it to a 
non-profit and asked would Washington County DSS be able to spend $35,000 each year to be a 
part of this consortium for foster care, to have a place for children with behavioral issues.  They 
are not asking for money now. Discussion ensued. 

Chair Keyes mentioned the positive comments she has heard in the community on 
Riverlight Transit. 



DRAFT 

 

IT Department, Ms. Darlene Fikes, IT Director 

Ms. Fikes spoke about the following items: 

 Getting Keystone migration software in Tax in September 
 VOIP to be installed at 2:30 PM on Jan 31, 2024 
 Moving her office to the basement—a very sizeable move.  Has expressed her 

concerns on humidity for the equipment.  Also, would have to rewire the whole 
courthouse with CAT5 cable. Does not feel it is feasible. Mr. Potter said the 
decision has already been made…she is moving.   

 Planning for her retirement in 5 or 6 years.  Trying to get someone in here to do 
what she does is going to be difficult.   

 

Cooperative Extension Office, Ms. Rebecca Liverman, Director 

Ms. Liverman showed her Citizen’s Academy video on what Cooperative Extension does. 
She also showed their SWOT analysis. The Board will see this more in their budget. 

Last year, in their travel line, it was for fuel, but a vehicle (truck) was not available to 
them so please do not take that line item away from them. 

Mr. Potter  mentioned that Ms. Liverman should look at the Strategic Plan under Safe 
Healthy Communities at Action SHD2024.5 

Commissioner Spruill asked about public beach access for Washington County and would 
like us to look into that.   

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Spruill seconded. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT 

 

                       
February 5, 2024 

 
  The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting 
on Monday, February 5, 2024, at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 
Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, 
Carol V. Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. Also, present were County 
Manager/ County Attorney Curtis S. Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and 
County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 

Chair Keyes called the meeting to order.  Commissioner Walker gave the 
invocation.  Commissioner Phelps led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  None. 

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve tonight’s agenda. 

Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
  CONSENT AGENDA: 

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board 
may take action to approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item 
may be withheld from a general action, to be discussed and voted upon 
separately at the discretion of the Board. 

 
a) Regular Session Minutes:  January 8, 2024 & January 16, 2024, Budget Workshop 

Minutes 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Account 
c) Revised Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy for Riverlight Transit 
d) RESO 2024-005 Approving & Accepting Sale of Real Property at 413 Brinkley Ave., 

Plymouth  
e) RESO 2024-006 Approving & Accepting Sale of Real Property at 411 Brinkley Ave., 

Plymouth  
f) Capital Project Ordinance for Pea Ridge Extension 
g) RESO 2024-007 Proclamation:  Black History Month 
h) Approval of FY2025 Budget Guidelines 
 

 Commissioner Spruill asked for a change to be made on pages 274-275 of the January 16, 
2024, Budget Session minutes that were in the Agenda Package.  He would like those pages to note he 
was talking about all fire departments, not just Roper. (The Clerk said those changes would be made.) 

   
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as 

amended tonight.  Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 

  PUBLIC FORUM:  No one. 
 

  DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION UPDATE:   Deputy Chief Arlo 
Norman spoke to the Board.    He gave them information on new hires: 
**New hires for Patrol  



DRAFT 

 

     9-1 Garry Kounce/Lives in Pantego/in BLET now  
     12-1 Dan Baker/from Illinois/lives in Pea Ridge/in BLET now  
     12-19 Kevin Jarvis/Lives in Pantego/in BLET now  
     12-29 James M. Patterson/Lives in Plymouth/BLET certified  
     2-1 Elizabeth Topliss/Lives in Moyock/BLET certified  
 
**New hire for Detention  
     2-5 Lajuana N. Brown/Lives in Plymouth/uncertified  
 
**New hires for E911  
     6-19 Bryanna Bland/Lives in Jamesville/certified now but after being hired  
     2-1 Allie Hufton/Lives in Pea Ridge/uncertified  
     3-1-24 (will start) Jessica Boyd/Lives in Plymouth/uncertified 
 
**2-5 Animal Control Officer Wayne Wisner returned to work after being out several 
months with a foot injury. 
**1-23 Hired the first Animal Shelter tech.  They were terminated on 2-5 due to job 
performance and not telling the truth about being at the job site when they actually never 
showed up.   
**2-1 hired the second Animal Shelter tech and they worked for 15 minutes and said that 
this job was not for them because it had their anxiety through the roof because of all of the 
loud barking and some of the animals not being cooperative 
.   
**June 2023 Chief Deputy Norman said he started the first ever Chief Deputies 
Leadership Institute.  The training is broken down into 3 one-week training periods.  The 
first week of training had 60 Chief Deputies attending.  I attended the second week of 
CDLI in January 2024 and there was a total of 55 Chief Deputies that attended.   I will 
attend week 3 of CDLI in June 2024 and once completed will graduate from the program 
and receive a certificate.  This training teaches a wide variety of topics such as leadership, 
managing staff, budgets, new laws and overseeing an effective Sheriff’s Office.   
 
**Paper service Data  
     2023 Civil papers handled—759  
     2024 through February—37  
     2023 Criminal papers handled—193  
     2024 through February—21  
 
**Criminal offenses that were documented and investigated  
     2023—146 offenses  
     2024—4 sexual assaults involving minors  
 
**Also note that Investigators are actively working on drug cases involving Cocaine and 
Fentanyl.    
 
   

Chief Deputy Norman noted that training officers takes 6 months of going to 
school at night to get certified at Beaufort County Community College. 
  



DRAFT 

 

  Commissioner Spruill asked if they are seeing an increase in fentanyl.  
Chief Deputy Norman replied yes, but not just here. He feels the main reasons are 
that people are jobless, they have no home training,  and there is no leadership in 
their life. 
  
  Commissioner Spruill asked if there is an increase in violent crimes. Chief 
Deputy Norman stated it is usually around Christmas and summertime.  
 
  Commissioner Spruill asked what the Commissioners can do to help.  Chief 
Deputy Norrman said he feels that the relationship between the Board and the 
Sheriff’s Office is good.  
 
  Mr. Potter asked about increasing certification requirements for deputies 
and telecommunicators.  Chief Deputy Norman said yes that the new certification 
requirements apply to all of them, and it will hurt us because we have such a 
problem with hiring.  Mr. Potter asked if the Sheriff’s Office would like help in 
pushing back on this with the legislatures.  Chief Deputy Norman said yes. 
Commissioner Johnson said that she is getting ready to attend a legislative goals 
conference so she might be able to get it on their radar. 
 
  Sheriff  Barnes spoke up and said increasing the certifications has already 
been through the process in the Sheriff’s Association and its pretty much set in 
stone to have people certified before starting work. He is not sure any good would 
come of taking it to our legislatures. 
 
  Sheriff John Barnes then talked with the Board about the Sheriff’s Office 
budget for FY25.  He said his Office is doing reasonably well. He is not asking for 
any big-ticket items other than the usual—vehicles. Fuel may be an issue with a full 
crew. They finally have the radios required. A new software system went live today 
for law enforcement.  There will be no more paper citations.  They will now be done 
on the computer and printed out in the vehicles.  Sheriff Barnes noted that they have 
replaced some of their weapons. He also noted that Ford, Chevy, and Dodge are not 
making any cars for law enforcement, just SUV’s and they will be ~$5,000 more 
than a car would be. The Sheriff said since they have a replacement rotation they are 
doing well with vehicles.  
 
  Commissioner Johnson asked what RMS is.  Sheriff Barnes said it is their 
computer system.  
 
  Chair Keyes thanked law enforcement for what they do and said she 
appreciates what they do. 
 

 TAX COLLECTOR’S REPORT:  Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator, was unable to 
attend tonight’s meeting; however, she did provide her notes for the Tax Collector’s report. Ms. 
Bennett, Clerk to the Board, read the following information. 
 

In accordance with NCGS 105-369(a) the following represents the total of unpaid 2023 
taxes that are liens on Real Property as of January 31, 2024 - $726,487.29.   



DRAFT 

 

 
In accordance with NCGS 105-369 (b1) letters will be mailed the week of March 11th to 

notify the taxpayers of their delinquencies and that the delinquent taxes will be advertised in 
April. The letters will include the Debt Set-off information and the Notice of Lien Advertisement 
information (also referred to as the 2nd Notice letter).  The taxes have to be delinquent 60 days to 
send the Debt Set-off letter (the date of delinquency is January 6th), that is why the letters will be 
mailed in March. After 30 days from the date of the letter we will advertise the delinquent taxes 
in April.   

 
Washington County’s Delinquent Tax Coordinator, Ms. Christal Watkins, has sent 

employer letters to area employers requesting a list of their employees,  and she will use this 
information to process wage garnishments.  She will also be processing bank attachments.  These 
enforced collections can begin on the date of delinquency.    
 

Taxpayers are contacting the Tax Office to set up monthly payments.  They are setting up 
payment agreements to have the taxes paid by June 2024.  If they default on their monthly 
payment the Tax Office will enforce collections through the wage garnishment, bank attachment 
or foreclosure.   
 

Commissioner  Spruill made a motion to approve advertising the Tax Collector’s 
Report for the 2023 Tax Liens.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.   Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 ¼ CENT SALES TAX REFERNEDUM:  Ms.  Asia Melton, Lead For North Carolina 
(LFNC) Fellow, spoke to the Board regarding the ¼ cent sales tax referendum that will be on the 
ballot March 5, 2024.  She also gave the following presentation. 
 
 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 

 



DRAFT 

 

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

Commissioner Phelps told Ms. Melton that she did a great job! 
 
Chair Keyes said she loved her enthusiasm! 

 
Mr. Potter said that the funds for this educational project are running short to get the 

postcards out. He will be getting a BA/BT to the Commissioners for the additional funds (from 
Contingency). 
 
 STRATEGIC PLAN DISCUSSION:  Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA, went over the Strategic 
Plan again with the Board. [This document is incorporated herein by reference and will be made 
a part of these minutes.] 
 

Mr. Potter said the County will be soliciting feedback from partners and the community. 
There will be a Public Hearing at the next Commissioners’ meeting.  
 

BOARDS & COMMITTEES:  Ms. Bennett, Clerk to the Board, spoke to the 
Commissioners. 
 

WASHINGTON COUNTY ABC BOARD: 
 

The Clerk stated that she put the following information in the package regarding the re-
appointment of Mr. Jack Faulk. 

 



DRAFT 

 

Mr. Jack Faulk’s term expired December 31, 2023.  He is the Chairman of the ABC 
Board.  He has done a fine job as the Board's leader, and they would like to see him continue to 
serve. 
Mr. Faulk has said he would like to continue to serve if re-appointed. 
 
 The Clerk was contacted on Friday by the Washington County ABC Board, and they 
asked to make a few changes to the terms on their board so they would have more staggered 
terms.   
 
 They proposed to change Tim Spear’s term from June 2025 to December 2025. 
 
 They proposed to change the re-appointment of Jack Faulk to a one-time, 4-year term, to 
expire, December 2027. 
 
 Discussion ensued and then the item was tabled. 
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.   

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 

 



DRAFT 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the budget transfers/ amendments 
#2024-61 - #2024-72_as presented.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   
 
 Ms. Bennett, Clerk to the Board, stated that the Board needed to nominate a Voting 
Delegate for the upcoming NACo Legislative Conference.  Commissioner Johnson is attending 
that conference.  Commissioner Johnson stated that no Washington County taxpayer money is 
funding this trip. 
  

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to nominate Commissioner Johnson as 
Washington County’s NACo Voting Delegate.  Commissioner CP seconded.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
Commissioner Spruill will be attending a Coastal Resources meeting in Wilmington, 

February 21-22, 2024. 
 
Commissioner Johnson will be attending a NC Leadership Class. She will also be at UNC 

SOG handing out certificates for graduates of a leadership class.  
 
Mr. Potter stated that the Department Head Meeting being held on Feb 7 will be for the 

Budget Kickoff.  Other items/meetings he noted are: 
 E-courts went live today.  
 Drainage Advisory Mtg Friday, Feb 9 @ 8:30 AM @ Cooperative Extension 
 Feb 20  is the “go live” date for our new phone system (VoIP)  
 Feb 15 hybrid mtg @ 2:00 PM NC resources for 250th celebration of the US 
 Feb 19 Airport Advisory Committee Mtg 
 Feb 20 Golden Leaf will be here 
 Early voting starts on Feb 15 
 Ribbon cutting for Agape on Feb 8 @ 1:00 PM 

 
Mr. Potter said he is still hammering out details on the change order for school 

construction contract.  He is putting the joint meeting off with the BoE until the Feb 27 (or 20 if 
need be) or wait till our March 4 Commissioners’ mtg. 

 
Ms. Bennett noted that the Board meeting for March, which is usually held in Roper, will 

be held in the Commissioners’ Room due to voting at BCCC/WCC. 
 
Chair Keyes said she was teaching at 100 Couties Be Prepared meeting last week in 

Asheville.  She also mentioned there will be a documentary on the Town of Roper later in Feb. 
 



DRAFT 

 

Commissioner Spruill said the Plymouth Volunteer Fire Department will be having a 
pancake supper Tues. Feb 6 and the Roper Volunteer Fire Department will be selling BBQ plates 
on Feb. 16. 

 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to 
NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-client privilege and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) 
(personnel).  Commissioner  Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Back in Open Session, with no further business to discuss, Commissioner Spruill made 
a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 

    Ann C. Keyes        Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
            Chair          Clerk to the Board 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda March 4, 2024
	3-4-2024  Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Tax Refunds & Releases
	Reso2024-008
	RESO 2024-009 Severe Weather Week Mar  2024
	RESOLUTION 2024-010 Establishing Waterworks Capital Project Fund WCPF for 20240304 BOCC mtg
	Capital Project Ordinance Amendment Pea Ridge Water Transmission Main for 20240304 BOCC mtg
	PMZ - Obstruction Removal Scope and Fee 1-15-2024-signed
	PMZ_Obstruction Removal Scope-1-15-2024.pdf
	PMZ_LiDAR Survey_AVCON.pdf
	Plymouth Municipal Airport(PMZ) LiDAR Survey
	Plymouth, NC
	Proposal for Professional Services
	A.  Project Description
	B.  Scope of Services
	Task 1- UAS LiDAR Topographic Mapping
	Not Included Items
	Project Management

	C.  Additional Services
	D.  Expenses
	E.  Compensation For Services
	F.  Timeline for Services
	G.  Acceptance


	PMZ Approach Clearing Proposal 2023-9-25.pdf
	Plymouth Municipal Airport (PMZ)
	Approach Clearing Project
	Plymouth, Washington County, NC
	Proposal for Professional Services
	A.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION
	B.  SCOPE OF SERVICES
	Task 1- Project Management and Administration
	Task 2 – Environmental Site Review
	Wetland Delineation
	Field Survey for Federal and State Listed Threatened & Endangered Species
	Task 3 – Site Report
	Task 4 – Preparation of Responses to Specific Sections of Documented CATEX
	Task 5 – Expenses

	C.  EXCLUSIONS
	D.  ADDITIONAL SERVICES
	E.  CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES
	F.  COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES
	G.  TIMELINE FOR SERVICES
	H.  ACCEPTANCE

	PMZ Obstruction Removal Exhibits.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	EX-01

	Runway 21 Obstruction Removal Limits_Exhibit-EX-01-with obstructions-8-17-23.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	EX-01



	Enviro Services Man Hour Spreadsheet_NCDOT_Template_2021 Approved Rates_Plymouth Approach Clearing.pdf
	Task 1
	Task 2
	Task 3
	Task 4
	Task 5


	PMZ Obstruction Removal Exhibits.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	EX-01

	Runway 21 Obstruction Removal Limits_Exhibit-EX-01-with obstructions-8-17-23.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	EX-01





	i) Notification of Funding Award from DOA 20240109
	i) PMZ Partially Executed Contract 2024_02_26
	05_CONTRACT FORM
	07_PERFORMANCE BOND
	08_LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT METHOD

	3-4-2024  Item 2 (public forum)
	3-4-2024 Item 3 Employee of the Quarter
	3-4-2024 Item 4 Public Hearing --Strategic Plan
	Copy of Strategic Plan 20240102 reduced size
	3-4-2024 Item 5 Albemarle Commission Update
	3-4-2024 Item 6 Quarter Cent Tax Ref
	3-4-2024 Item 7 Broadband Update
	NC_BroadbandProfile_2023v7_WASHINGTON
	3-4-2024 Item 8 EMTOC Building
	Project Budget no bays
	2024-02-16 Washington Co EOC - Schematic Layout
	Sheets
	PR4 - CONCEPT FLOOR PLAN


	3-4-2024 Item 9 EM Grant
	WC EM Search & Resue Expansion Project Summary
	WC EM Project Grant Info
	3-4-2024 Item 10 Boards & Committees
	3-4-2024 Item 11 Finance Officer's Report
	Budget Transfers-Amendments (2)
	Expenditure Transaction Report-Budget Amendments-Transfers as of 2-28-24
	Finance Report as of 2-28-2024
	Revenue Transaction Report-Budget Amendments-Transfers as of 2-28-24
	3-4-2024 Item 12 Other Items
	Approval - FYI - Breezy Banks Subdivision
	BreezyBanks Estates subdivision
	Reports for 3-4-2024 BoCC Meeting
	Stat Report Cover Sheet
	Statistical Report for March 2024 Commissioners Meeting
	3-4-2024 Item 13 Closed Session
	01-22-2024 Budget workshop meeting --Dept. Heads
	2-5-2024 minutes



